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Consolidated Balance Sheet

RREERER

As at 31 December

R+=—BA=+—H
2014 2013
—ZET-NF —E—=F
Note us$’000 Us$'000
B 5 FEx FET
ASSETS BE
Non-current assets IRBEE
Land use rights b {5 A 6 2,767 2,624
Property, plant and equipment W BB LEE 7 167,220 126,708
Intangible assets BmVEE 8 9,822 11,163
Long-term loan and receivables RHE R & E W R E 13 165 117
Investment in an associate R—EEE LT 2’E 10(a) 3,393 3,490
Total non-current assets EARBEEHAE 183,367 144,102
Current assets REBEE
Inventories e 12 104,775 115,202
Trade receivables JEWE 5 BR X 13 25,981 30,741
Amount due from the non- U — R FT B A7)
controlling interest of a subsidiary FEFE MR M AR 2 FRIB 933 1,445
Short-term loan to an associate i ) /N o 10(b),
REE SR 35(d) - 96
Amount due from an associate JEU—FER A AR ZFIE 10(0),
35(d) 123 -
Prepayments and other receivables TE 308 K H A U 8 13 14,986 14,311
Amount due from a related party B —2BHBEBEALZ
NIE 35(d) 1,146 -
Restricted cash SRR e 14(b) 4,249 4,264
Short-term bank deposits MERITER 14(a) 3,463 3,013
Cash and cash equivalents RekReEED 14(a) 37,491 39,496
193,147 208,568
Disposal group held for sale BESEARNZEE 15 1,926 -
Total current assets RBEEHE 195,073 208,568
Total assets EEHRE 378,440 352,670
EQUITY =
Equity attributable to owners of ARNEEEAEMGER
the Company
Share capital AR A< 16 15,228 15,228
Reserves & 17 253,901 256,677
269,129 271,905
Non-controlling interest FEFERRAE (2,030) (1,748)
Total equity EREE 267,099 270,157
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Consolidated Balance Sheet

RREERER

As at 31 December

R+=—BA=+-—H
2014 2013
—E-mEF —E-=%
Note us$’000 Us$'000
B 5 FEx FET
LIABILITIES a8
Non-current liabilities ERBEE
Bank borrowings RITEE 19 32,696 2,074
Deferred income tax liabilities RIERMBHAaE 20 4,772 5,357
Retirement benefit obligations RABHEE 30 1,214 1,169
Total non-current liabilities IRBEELARE 38,682 8,600
Current liabilities REAE 18
Trade payables JERTE SR 18 14,546 14,590
Accruals and other payables EETERREMBEMNFKIE  35(d) 18,331 14,975
Amount due to a related party eI —BAREALTIE 19 - 313
Bank borrowings RITEE 38,857 43,085
Current income tax liabilities BNERFT SR & (& 925 950
Total current liabilities REEEARHE 72,659 73,913
Total liabilities EEHEE 111,341 82,513
Total equity and liabilities EERBBEAE 378,440 352,670
Net current assets REBEERE 122,414 134,655
Total assets less current liabilities ZEEZAEBERADER 305,781 278,757

The financial statements on pages 52 to 141 were approved by the Board of Directors on 24 March 2015 and were

signed on its behalf.

HREREMNEZTBBRROCEEEFEN _E-AF A - +HABRRI A TIALTRERESZ-

YANG, Tou-Hsiung
B
Director

EF

YANG, Kun-Hsiang
B
Director

EF

The notes on pages 60 to 141 are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
HNECOR 141 BRI TR AR S M IS R m — 501
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Balance Sheet

EERER

As at 31 December

R+=-—A=+-—8
2014 2013
—E-@ImF ZE—=F
Note us$’000 Us$'000
B 5 FEx FET
ASSETS BE
Non-current assets ERBEE
Intangible assets BREE 8 201 1,410
Investments in subsidiaries KRB AR Z®RE 9(a) 166,030 166,030
Investment in an associate Rn—EsERAZ
A& 10(a) 3,788 3,788
Loan to subsidiaries HBTHBRAAIZER 9(b) 7,218 2,218
Total non-current assets kARBEEHLE 177,237 173,446
Current assets RBEE
Loans to subsidiaries BTIHBARIZER 9(b) = 54
Amounts due from subsidiaries NG O 9(b) 38,738 41,640
Short-term loan to an associate BT —MEEARZ  10(),
HRHER 35(d) - 96
Amount due from an associate JE U — eI Bt 2 R A 10(c),
IE 35(d) 123 -
Prepayments and other receivables TE T I8 K
H h & R IE 13 1,702 1,888
Short-term bank deposits RHIRITER 14(a) 2,059 2,066
Cash and cash equivalents HekReEED 14(a) 909 1,076
Total current assets RBEEHAE 43,531 46,820
Total assets BE#E 220,768 220,266
EQUITY E=
Equity attributable to owners of RAEEER A
the Company FE(RRE %
Share capital N 16 15,228 15,228
Reserves 1 17 195,023 201,037
Total equity ERmE 210,251 216,265

54  vedan International (Holdings) Limited k3 BB (3258) BRA T



Balance Sheet

EERER

As at 31 December

R+=-—A=+-—8
2014 2013
—ZE—NF —F—=fF
Note US$’000 Us$'000
B & FEx FET
LIABILITIES a8fE
Current liabilities REBAE
Accruals and other payables EEAERK
H h & < 5108 18 1,241 1,186
Bank borrowings RITIEE 19 9,276 2,502
Amount due to a related party JER—HRBIEALT
A 35(d) - 313
Total current liabilities RBEERE 10,517 4,001
Total equity and liabilities EERhEEHEE 220,768 220,266
Net current assets RBEEFRE 33,014 42,819
Total assets less current liabilities HEERABERE 210,251 216,265

The financial statements on pages 52 to 141 were approved by the Board of Directors on 24 March 2015 and were

signed on its behalf.

HRERENMNEZYBBRROCEEEFEN _E-AF=A - +HHABRRIHTIALTRRESZ-

YANG, Tou-Hsiung YANG, Kun-Hsiang
BRI i

Director Director

EZE EF

The notes on pages 60 to 141 are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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Consolidated Income Statement

meWmEmER
Year ended 31 December 2014 HE-Z—NF+_-_A=+—HILFE
Year ended 31 December
BE+-A=1+—RBL=EE
2014 2013
—B-mEF —E-=F
Note UsS$'000 Us$'000
B 5 FEx FET
Revenue g 21 325,627 342,453
Cost of sales 4 & AR 23 (281,511) (294,364)
Gross profit EF 44,116 48,089
Other gains — net H iz —F58 22 870 1,156
Gain on disposal of non-current assets o FE & FETR S
held for sale BE 2R = 986
Selling and distribution expenses HE R A 23 (22,627) (23,279)
Administrative expenses THFEX 23 (23,491) (24,637)
Operating (loss)/profit L (F|) A (1,132) 2,315
Finance income B B 643 981
Finance costs B B sz i (910) (742)
Finance (costs)/income — net R (ZH) /A~
R 24 (267) 239
Share of post-tax loss of an associate FE(E — R & QA
iz g R 10(a) (97) (32)
(Loss)/profit before income tax MAETESHAT (EHE)
b (1,496) 2,522
Income tax expense TS8R 25 (1,432) (1,794)
(Loss)/profit for the year REE (FBEB), B 26 (2,928) 728
(Loss)/profit attributable to: UT&HEMN(FE)
Ve vk
Owners of the Company ZiN/NIEZ RSN (2,434) 1,488
Non-controlling interest IR (494) (760)
(2,928) 728
Earnings per share for (loss)/profit EARBEEBARLER
attributable to the owners of the (BR) &z
Company during the year (expressed SRZEF (UAERK
in US cents per share) EWFIR)
Basic (loss)/earnings per share BREX (BE)
B 28 (0.16) 0.10
Diluted (loss)/earnings per share Sk#E (B8R
EF 28 (0.16) 0.10

The notes on pages 60 to 141 are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
HNEOR 141 ENM T TGS M IS mKRH — 301 -
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

meE2EWER
Year ended 31 December 2014 #HZE_ZF FZA=+—HILFE
Year ended 31 December
BE+t-—A=+t—HBLEE
2014 2013
—E-F —ET-=%F
Us$‘000 Us$'000
FE5x FxET
(Loss)/profit for the year TEE (BB) B (2,928) 728
Other comprehensive income Hih2mEKA
ltem that may be reclassified to AEFHEEERZIER
profit or loss
Currency translation differences EHZERE (285) 1,770
Other comprehensive income TEERBEEMEEBA
for the year, net of tax (285) 1,770
Total comprehensive income AEE2HBRALE
for the year (3,213) 2,498
Total comprehensive income UTEAEGEREE
for the year attributable to: 2HIKRALRE:
— Owners of the Company . WNEIEZ =N (2,715) 3,236
— Non-controlling interest —IEfE IR i = (498) (738)
Total comprehensive income AFE2EMB AL
for the year (3,213) 2,498

The notes on pages 60 to 141 are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
mEERBSHR

Year ended 31 December 2014 HEZT—NF+_A=+—HIFE

Attributable to owners of the Company

RAREEAES
Non-
Share Share Other Merger Retained controlling Total
capital premium reserve reserve earnings Total interest equity
B B3 EE Hitfi% AOHERE REEF @i FERER BRAE
US$'000 US$'000 US$'000 US$'000 US$'000 US$'000 US$'000 US$'000
TEn T£n TEn Fxn TEn Fxn TEn FEn
Balance at 1 January 2013 RZZ-Zf-A-RAzE&H 15,228 47,358 15,438 79,994 114,392 272,410 (1,010 271,400
Comprehensive income 2EKBA
Profit/(loss) for the year KEERF/ (BE) - - - - 1,488 1,488 (760) 728
Other comprehensive income Hit2EKA
Currency translation differences ERER - - 1,748 - - 1,748 2 1,770
Total comprehensive income/(loss) ~ 2EKA/ (BE) 48 - - 1,748 - 1,488 3,236 (738) 2,498
Total transactions with owners HREAZERSE
Dividends paid relating to 2012 and ZE-ZFR-T-=F
2013 interim period PHEE ERRE - - - - (3,741) (3,741) - (3,741)
Balance at 31 December 2013 WZ8-Z§+ZA=+-H2
&4 15,228 47,358 17,186 79,994 112,139 271,905 (1,748) 270,157
Balance at 1 January 2014 RZZ-ME-A-B2&H 15,228 47,358 17,186 79,994 112,139 271,905 (1,748) 270,157
Comprehensive income 2EBA
Loss for the year TEEEE - - - - (2,434) (2,434) (494) (2,928
Other comprehensive income Hp2ERA
Currency translation differences ERzE - - (281) - - (281) (4) (285)
Total comprehensive income/(loss) ~ 2EAM A/ (FB) AE - - (281) - (2,434) (2,715) (498) (3,213)
Total transactions with owners HEBAZBRSE
Changes in ownership interests in a TESHRHELSD HBLA
subsidiary without change of control A A E ) (H537)
(Note 37) - - (61) - - (61) 216 155
Balance at 31 December 2014 RZ2-mE+=A=+-A2
a4 15,228 47,358 16,844 79,994 109,705 269,129 (2,030 267,099

The notes on pages 60 to 141 are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

RERERER

Year ended 31 December

BE+-—A=+t—HLEFE

2014 2013
—E-mfF —T—=fF
Note US$'000 Us$'000
ihg=2 FTEx F=T
Cash flows from operating activities REEBZHRERE
Cash generated from/(used in) ¥MEL/ (A2
operations B 32 36,092 (2,420)
Interest received 2 U4F B 643 981
Interest paid BAFE (910) (707)
Income taxes paid BRI (2,042) (4,068)
Net cash generated from/(used in) KEXEBEE
operating activities (FFA)zHReF8E 33,783 (6,214)
Cash flows from investing activities REFTHZRERE
Purchases of property, plant and BEWME BERZE
equipment 7 (61,138) (7,848)
Proceeds from sale of property, HEME BFE REE
plant and equipment Z PR RUE 32 12 10
Proceeds from sale of non-current HERERE ZERD
assets held for sale BEZFSRIA 32 - 2,886
Purchases of intangible assets BERVEE 8 (25) (25)
Purchases of land use rights et AR 6 (219) (406)
(Increase)/decrease in short-term RHRITER
bank deposits (m),/ L 14(a) (450) 4,374
Decrease/(increase) in restricted cash SR HIIR &
A (1) 14(b) 15 (4,264)
Decrease/(increase) in short-term loan to 4 F—RHE & QA F 2
an associate REEZRL
(4&hn) 96 (96)
Increase in investment in an associate R—HEBERRZRE
32 11 10(a) - (480)
Net cash used in investing activities KEEBFAZREFE (61,709) (5,849)
Cash flows from financing activities METHZRERE
Dividends paid BEEE 27 = (3,741)
Proceeds from bank borrowings RITEEMSRIA 158,496 70,838
Repayment of bank borrowings BEERITEE (132,102) (58,898)
Net cash from financing activities RMEEBMSR 26,394 8,199
Net decrease in cash and ReRESZEEY
cash equivalents WA R (1,532) (3,864)
Cash and cash equivalents RENzZEE R
at beginning of year BEeEED 14(a) 39,496 42,567
Exchange (loss)/gains on cash and RekREeEEDWZ
cash equivalents PE Y, (E518) e (160) 793
Cash transferred to disposal group HBEREHE
held for sale HEMARZRE (313) -
Cash and cash equivalents RERZEER
at end of year HELEEY 14(a) 37,491 39,496

The notes on pages 60 to 141 are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e BHRRME

GENERAL INFORMATION

Vedan International (Holdings) Limited (“the Company”) and
its subsidiaries (together the “Group”) manufacture and sell
fermentation-based food additives, biochemical products and
cassava starch-based industrial products including modified
starch, glucose syrup, Monosodium Glutamate (“MSG"), soda,
acid and beverages. The products are sold to food distributors,
international trading companies, and manufacturers of food,
paper, textiles, and chemical products in Vietnam, other ASEAN
member countries, the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC"),
Japan, Taiwan, and several European countries.

The Company is a limited liability company incorporated in the
Cayman Islands. The address of its registered office is Century
Yard, Cricket Square, Hutchins Drive, P.O. Box 2681 GT, George
Town, Grand Cayman, British West Indies.

The Company is listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited.

These financial statements are presented in United States
dollars (“US$"), unless otherwise stated. These financial
statements were approved for issue by the Board of Directors
on 24 March 2015.

BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY OF
SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation
of these consolidated financial statements are set out below.
These policies have been consistently applied to all the years
presented, unless otherwise stated.

2.1 Basis of preparation
The consolidated financial statements of the Group have
been prepared in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRS"). The consolidated
financial statements have been prepared under the
historical cost convention.

60 Vedan International (Holdings) Limited k£ EIB2 (#25%) HR A =
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

ARE T BRRME

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY
OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

2.1

Basis of preparation (continued)

The consolidated financial statements are prepared in
accordance with the applicable requirements of the
predecessor Companies Ordinance (Cap. 32) for this
financial year and the comparative period.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity
with HKFRS requires the use of certain critical accounting
estimates. It also requires management to exercise
its judgement in the process of applying the Group’s
accounting policies. The areas involving a higher degree
of judgement or complexity, or areas where assumptions
and estimates are significant to the consolidated financial
statements, are disclosed in Note 4.

(a) The following new standards, interpretations and
amendments to standards are mandatory for the
Company for the first time for the financial year
beginning on 1 January 2014, but have not had
any significant impact on the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements.

HKFRS 10, Investment Entities

HKFRS 12 and

HKAS 27 (2011)

Amendment
HKAS 32 Offsetting Financial Assets
Amendment and Financial Liabilities
HKAS 36 Recoverable Amount
Amendment Disclosures for Non-
Financial Assets
HKAS 39 Novation of Derivatives and
Amendment Continuation of Hedge
Accounting
HK(IFRIC) — Int 21 Levies

RHREERFEGRREE (&)

2.1

mAEEE (H)

AP BFEERLEBEE 256 WE
WERTRER (R ARG OEPIFE
NE)NBERRERE -

RETETEMBRSES LRI
BERBEEMETEEN A
MEREERBANEEZGHER
BREPITRZELHE - S RBEE
MR R R A 2 BES SHAR
EUBHmRBEAZBRRIMET 3
MY REAT T AR EE -

(a) ARAWRBIN T —F—
A—BRHZMBFEEERE
RATHIHEER - 2R RERZ
R BEXEEEEMBHRE
CRHBELTMERTE -

EEMBHMEELN REER

£105%FH
B 2
FRRREE
S ERIE275
(Z2——%)
CCHEN)

ER g ER EHMBEER
£32% HHaR
CHES!

Ehg st FRBEETH
#£36% EeEsHE
(BT R)

Eg st TETRZ
%395 BEREM
SCHES) BiEZIEE

R (BRGKE #E
tREZE®)

-REBE21%
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BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY 2

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e BHRRME

OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (continued)
(b)  The following new standards and amendments to (b)
standards have been issued, but are not effective
for the financial year beginning on 1 January 2014
and have not been early adopted.

RHREERFEGRREE (&)

2.1 mBEXE (E])

ATFREBRBGELIFNR=-F
—mE—-A—BRBZPEF
EAEM BRI AT R 2 %
A e ZERI 2 (3T

Effective for
annual periods
beginning on or after

RTIBHH 2%
Mmea AERENR
HKAS 19 (2011) Amendment  Defined Benefit Plans: Employee 1 July 2014
Contributions
FR G ERE195% ERBAMEE - EEHR —E-WHFEEA—H
—E——F) (FX)
Annual Improvements Project  Annual Improvements 2010-2012 Cycle 1 July 2014
FREYGES B TE-TFEET-_FRAYZFENE —T-HFEA—H
Annual Improvements Project  Annual Improvements 2011-2013 Cycle 1 July 2014
FEUCEFE TE-—FET-ZFRAYZFENE —T-HFEA—H
Annual Improvements Project  Annual Improvements 2012-2014 Cycle 1 January 2016
FEUCEFE TE-CFET-MFRAYZFENRE —T-RF-A—H
HKFRS 14 Regulatory Deferral Accounts 1 January 2016
ERM B RS R E145% EEIRTERA —E-RF-A—H

HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28
Amendment

BB SR EEAE105 &
BB TR F285%
(fEET )

HKFRS 11 Amendment

BBV BREERE115
(BET )

HKAS 16 and HKAS 38
Amendment

BERGHEUNF 16 R
BB G ERIE38HR
(5T )

Sale or Contribution of Assets between
an Investor and its Associate or Joint
Venture

REFHEBRERRNEELECZENE
ELESTE

Accounting for Acquisitions of Interests
in Joint Operations

WEeeEGEaZ SRR

Clarification of Acceptable Methods of
Depreciation and Amortisation

BB X ZINER TR

62  Vedan International (Holdings) Limited kBB (#25%) HR 2 =
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

ARE T BRRME

2  BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY 2 REEERTIEGHHFERE (R)
OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)
2.1 Basis of preparation (continued) 21 mEEE(H)
(b)  (continued) (b)y (#&)
Effective for
annual periods
beginning on or after
RTHBE#HH 2%
HHzePEBEN
HKAS 16 and HKAS 41 Agriculture: Bearer Plants 1 January 2016
Amendment
EEGEAE 165 R BEEENEYD —E-RF-HA—H
B ERTERFEAR
(BFTA)
HKAS 27 Amendment Equity Method in Separate Financial 1 January 2016
Statements
ARG R SE275 BEEMBHRER 2 ERA —E-RF-HA—H
(BET7A)
HKAS 1 Amendment Disclosure initiative 1 January 2016
BRGNS 5% BEEEE —E-RF—-A—H
(EETA)
HKFRS 10, HKFRS 12 and Investment entities: applying the 1 January 2016
HKAS 28 consolidation exception

BREVMBRSEAFE 0% KREER EAAHER
BRI BREEANFE 1255
REE G ERIE285E

HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers
BB WG ERE15% RKEEPAEHZIE

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments

BBV BREEREIN LRI A

The Group has already commenced an assessment
of the impact of adopting the above new standards
and amendments to standards. The Group is not yet
in a position to state whether substantial changes
to the Group’s accounting policies and financial
statements presentation will result.

—2-AF—A—H

1 January 2017

—ET—+F—A—H
1 January 2018
—F-\¥-A—H

AEE DR A LA
HEAUREAZET Z2ZE K
SEEAEETESENSAE
B e RELMBHRRZE
FITAHBRERES-
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e BHRRME

A subsidiary is an entity (including a structured
entity) over which the Group has control. The
Group controls an entity when the Group is
exposed to, or has rights to, variable returns from
its involvement with the entity and has the ability
to affect those returns through its power over the
entity. Subsidiaries are consolidated from the date
on which control is transferred to the Group. They
are deconsolidated from the date that control

2  BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY 2 REHEBERIZTEHBFREE (K/)

OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (continued) 21 mEEE(FH)

() In addition, the requirements of Part 9 “Accounts (© WA BRIBEFEE R BEH

and Audit” of the new Hong Kong Companies (VEDI%622F ) E3581K A
Ordinance (Cap. 622) come into operation as from AHRPIFEOF IR E REE 8
the Company’s first financial year commencing on HERARAIEZZE—NF=
or after 3 March 2014 in accordance with section AZ=ZBz &GRS E 5
358 of that Ordinance. The Group is in the process FREEW NEEEFERF
of making an assessment of expected impact of Bl S g 5RERNEHE
the changes in the Companies Ordinance on the N AMED ORI $£622F ) 89
consolidated financial statements in the period of B EE 2 & Sk 2 TR Ef
initial application of Part 9 of the new Hong Kong FE-BRNERREZTE
Companies Ordinance (Cap. 622). It has concluded EEXEEAFE URKEXEY
that the impact is unlikely to be significant and only EHMBHREAERNZY] R
the presentation and the disclosure of information WERERTE-
in the consolidated financial statements will be
affected.

2.2 Subsidiaries 22 KMIEATAE

2.2.1 Consolidation 221454

MEARRASEBHUERES
ZHIEMNER (BEEBILE
) MAEBAAELESR
DEER A EOREARRE
h AR ERESZERZ
BAONZERMERE Y
ERTRERNE-WBARA
HEFBRERETAKEE RE
FEAR LRERERLEE

ceases. Hizlbéra Afke
Intra-group transactions, balances and unrealised SEARNFIRERS B kE

gains on transactions between group companies are
eliminated. Unrealised losses are also eliminated.
When necessary, amounts reported by subsidiaries
have been adjusted to conform with the Group's
accounting policies

64  Vedan International (Holdings) Limited k£ EIB2 (#25%) HR 2 =
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

ARE T BRRME

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY
OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

2.2 Subsidiaries (continued)
2.2.1 Consolidation (continued)

(a)

Business combinations

The Group applies the acquisition method
to account for business combinations. The
consideration transferred for the acquisition
of a subsidiary is the aggregate fair values of
the assets transferred, the liabilities incurred
to the former owners of the acquiree and
the equity interests issued by the Group. The
consideration transferred includes the fair
value of any asset or liability resulting from
a contingent consideration arrangement.
Identifiable assets acquired and liabilities and
contingent liabilities assumed in a business
combination are measured initially at their fair
values at the acquisition date.

The Group recognises any non-controlling
interest in the acquiree on an acquisition-
by-acquisition basis. Non-controlling
interests in the acquiree that are present
ownership interests and entitle their holders
to a proportionate share of the entity's
net assets in the event of liquidation are
measured at either fair value or the present
ownership interests’ proportionate share in
the recognised amounts of the acquiree's
identifiable net assets. All other components
of non-controlling interests are measured
at their acquisition date fair value, unless
another measurement basis is required by
HKFRS.

Acquisition-related costs are expensed as
incurred.

2

RHREERFEGRREE (&)

22 KMIEAR (&)
22,146 (#)

(a)

xBavt

AEBRBKBETE
EBast - WBHBEL
AMEEAERME R
EE - WRRBIMES
ERMELRERAEE
Fff 3877 B AN #E 2 9 R
ERE - FEERES
BHEARBERFELD
THEERABBENHRF
1B - N ETB A B ATl
BRI AR B B K AT A
EWRELRIABE:
VHRRBE RN R FE
B AEERZEEBEN
R LRI
s o

RNEE R ZR B EEE
RN PR EETT 2T
JEER A A o MR W B
T2 R s R IR
KGR BEETHSE
ABEDARBRERIR
LE Bl B ERE T
VA X P18 530 B A
AR RS 77 7 BB E
FECER SRR
D2 B ETH o BRIE
BREMBRELRRE
EREMAEELE T
AP B H A SR A a5
BB ARER Y E B
HZ AFEFE-

Ug 58 1R B B AN EE A By
S e
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e BHRRME

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY
OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

2.2 Subsidiaries (continued)
2.2.1 Consolidation (continued)

(a)

Business combinations (continued)

If the business combination is achieved in
stages, the acquisition date carrying value
of the acquirer’'s previously held equity
interest in the acquiree is re-measured to fair
value at the acquisition date; any gains or
losses arising from such re-measurement are
recognised in profit or loss.

Any contingent consideration to be
transferred by the Group is recognised at fair
value at the acquisition date. Subsequent
changes to the fair value of the contingent
consideration that is deemed to be an asset
or liability is recognised in accordance with
HKAS 39 either in profit or loss or as a change
to other comprehensive income. Contingent
consideration that is classified as equity is not
remeasured, and its subsequent settlement is
accounted for within equity.

The excess of the consideration transferred,
the amount of any non-controlling interest
in the acquiree and the acquisition-date fair
value of any previous equity interest in the
acquiree over the fair value of the identifiable
net assets acquired is recorded as goodwill.
If the total of consideration transferred, non-
controlling interest recognised and previously
held interest measured is less than the fair
value of the net assets of the subsidiary
acquired, in the case of a bargain purchase,
the difference is recognised directly in the
income statement.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

ARE T BRRME

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY 2 RUBXERTFESHBEREBE(MA/)
OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

22 MEBAF (E)
22,146 (#)

2.2 Subsidiaries (continued)

2.2.1 Consolidation (continued)

(b)

Changes in ownership interests in subsidiaries
without change of control

Transactions with non-controlling interests
that do not result in loss of control are
accounted for as equity transactions — that
is, as transactions with the owners in their
capacity as owners. The difference between
fair value of any consideration paid and the
relevant share acquired of the carrying value
of net assets of the subsidiary is recorded in
equity. Gains or losses on disposals to non-
controlling interests are also recorded in
equity.

Disposal of subsidiaries

When the Group ceases to have control, any
retained interest in the entity is re-measured
to its fair value at the date when control is
lost, with the change in carrying amount
recognised in profit or loss. The fair value is
the initial carrying amount for the purposes
of subsequently accounting for the retained
interest as an associate (Note 2.3), or financial
asset (Note 2.10). In addition, any amounts
previously recognised in other comprehensive
income in respect of that entity are accounted
for as if the Group had directly disposed of
the related assets or liabilities. This may mean
that amounts previously recognised in other
comprehensive income are reclassified to
profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e BHRRME

2  BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY 2 REHEBERIZTEHBFREE (K/)

OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

2.2 Subsidiaries (continued) 22 KWEAR (&)

2.2.2 Separate financial statements of the Company 222 ARaE]z BT BEHE

Investments in subsidiaries are accounted for at RETE R R 2 18 & 1 A AR
cost less impairment. Cost is adjusted to reflect BAR-KAGELAE N
changes in consideration arising from contingent REESAREBEITMEEZ
consideration amendments. Cost also includes REZFH -KANTBREEERE
direct attributable costs of investment. The results EZBENAR - WBAFZ %
of subsidiaries are accounted for by the Company BN AR B & R IGROR
on the basis of dividend and receivable. BEEARR
Impairment testing of the investments in WA B BB B A B E SRR
subsidiaries is required upon receiving dividends BHIE 2 2EKALLRE K
from these investments if the dividend exceeds the BUMBHMERANIRE ZREE
total comprehensive income of the subsidiary in the BREREAZFEE (B
period the dividend is declared or if the carrying BAE)RGREMBHRRER
amount of the investment in the separate financial E RIERERWEBARZK
statements exceeds the carrying amount in the AU SR A R AT
consolidated financial statements of the investee’s BRI -
net assets including goodwill.

2.3 Associates 23 HBERQT

Associates are all entities over which the Group
has significant influence but not control, generally
accompanying a shareholding of between 20% and
50% of the voting rights. Investments in associates are
accounted for using the equity method of accounting.
Under the equity method, the investment is initially
recognised at cost, and the carrying amount is increased
or decreased to recognise the investor's share of the
profit or loss of the investee after the date of acquisition.
The Group's investment in associates includes goodwill
identified on acquisition.

If the ownership interest in an associate is reduced but
significant influence is retained, only a proportionate
share of the amounts previously recognised in other
comprehensive income is reclassified to profit or loss
where appropriate.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

ARE T BRRME

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY
OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

2.3

2.4

Associates (continued)

The Group's share of post-acquisition profit or loss
is recognised in the consolidated income statement,
and its share of post-acquisition movements in
other comprehensive income is recognised in other
comprehensive income with a corresponding adjustment
to the carrying amount of the investment. When the
Group’s share of losses in an associate equals or exceeds
its interest in the associate, including any other unsecured
receivables, the Group does not recognise further losses,
unless it has incurred legal or constructive obligations or
made payments on behalf of the associate.

The Group determines at each reporting date whether
there is any objective evidence that the investment in
the associate is impaired. If this is the case, the Group
calculates the amount of impairment as the difference
between the recoverable amount of the associate and
its carrying value and recognises the amount adjacent to
‘share of post-tax loss of an associate’ in the consolidated
income statement.

Profits and losses resulting from upstream and
downstream transactions between the Group and
its associate are recognised in the Group’s financial
statements only to the extent of unrelated investor’s
interests in the associates. Unrealised losses are
eliminated unless the transaction provides evidence of
an impairment of the asset transferred. The financial
information of associate has been changed where
necessary to ensure consistency with the policies adopted
by the Group.

Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent
with the internal reporting provided to the chief
operating decision-maker. The chief operating decision-
maker, who is responsible for allocating resources and
assessing performance of the operating segments, has
been identified as the Executive Directors.

2

RHREERFEGRREE (&)

2.3

2.4

BEQT (8
AEBEREEEBERBEENGA WS
RANHER - MEEGKRRE 2R
WA 2 BB RO B At 2 T A X i
R WHBREREEFELAERE-
MASEEGE—RBE AR ZEBE
ERREBERNZM L AR 2w
BREEMNEMETIFEETE £%
EAEERE—FEBR RIEAERK
B2 DR R E BT RAE
HAT AR e

AEERSREAHAEERBE R
BZRERBEEMEBREEE-
HWEERERE AEESTBHER
BRI Ol & AR B AR 2 2R A
HRESHE NGRS WER [EE
ERRRREEBEE BRAEED
B

REBEREBERARABEZ EFET
MRSMELEZ BN AEE 2
BHMERNER  EEAIFFRERES
REERR Z D RR -FRIFER
REHRUHCEREELRBE LR
B BRIREREIET AL B2
REZMBEERECR B ERFEE - A
BRETARNEEIERMN 2K -

2EWEE
BENHZE2ERAAERFETEE
BERARELZABER B -BED
RERLFGEEDHEEZTE
BERRECE - HETRITE
=o

Annual Report 2014 £3 69



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e BHRRME

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY
OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

2.5

Foreign currency translation

(a)

(b)

Functional and presentation currency

Items included in the financial statements of each
of the Group’s entities are measured using the
currency of the primary economic environment
in which the entity operates (“the functional
currency”). The consolidated financial statements
are presented in US$, which is the Company's
functional and the Group’s presentation currency.

Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into
the functional currency using the exchange rates
prevailing at the dates of the transactions or
valuation where items are re-measured. Foreign
exchange gains and losses resulting from the
settlement of such transactions and from the
translation at year-end exchange rates of monetary
assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies are recognised in the income statement,
except when deferred in equity as qualifying cash
flow hedges and qualifying net investment hedges.

All foreign exchange gains and losses including
those relate to borrowings and cash and cash
equivalents are presented in the consolidated
income statement within ‘other gains — net’.

Translation differences on non-monetary financial
assets and liabilities are recognised in profit or loss
as part of the fair value gain or loss.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY
OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

2.5

2.6

Foreign currency translation (continued)

(c)  Group companies
The results and financial position of all the group
entities (none of which has the currency of a
hyperinflationary economy) that have a functional
currency different from the presentation currency
are translated into the presentation currency as
follows:

- assets and liabilities for each balance sheet
presented are translated at the closing rate at
the date of that balance sheet;

- income and expenses for each income
statement are translated at average exchange
rates (unless this average is not a reasonable
approximation of the cumulative effect of
the rates prevailing on the transaction dates,
in which case income and expenses are
translated at the rate on the dates of the
transactions); and

- all resulting exchange differences are
recognised in other comprehensive income.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on the
acquisition of a foreign entity are treated as assets
and liabilities of the foreign entity and translated
at the closing rate. Exchange differences arising are
recognised in other comprehensive income.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment, except for construction-
in-progress, is stated at historical cost less accumulated
depreciation and accumulated impairment losses.
Historical cost includes expenditure that is directly
attributable to the acquisition of the items.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e BHRRME

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY
OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

2.6

Property, plant and equipment (continued)
Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying
amount or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate,
only when it is probable that future economic benefits
associated with the item will flow to the Group and the
cost of the item can be measured reliably. The carrying
amount of the replaced part is derecognised. All other
repairs and maintenance are charged in the consolidated
income statement during the financial period in which
they are incurred.

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment is
calculated using the straight-line method to allocate their
costs to their residual values over their estimated useful
lives, as follows:

- Properties 20-50 years
- Plant and machinery 10-20 years
- Motor vehicles 5-8 years
- Office equipment 5-8 years

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed,
and adjusted if appropriate, at the end of each reporting
period.

An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately
to its recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying amount is
greater than its estimated recoverable amount (Note 2.8).

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by
comparing the proceeds with the carrying amount
and are recognised within ‘other gains — net’, in the
consolidated income statement.

Construction-in-progress, comprising capital expenditure
on buildings and plant where the construction work has
not been completed, is carried at cost less accumulated
impairment losses. No depreciation is provided for
construction-in-progress.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

ARE T BRRME

2  BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY 2 REEERTIEGHHFERE (R)
OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)
2.7 Intangible assets 27 EBEEE
(a)  Goodwill (a) EFEE
Goodwill arises on the acquisition of subsidiaries EERKBNBEARRFES
and represents the excess of the consideration WAEFTE R R (E R E R
transferred, the amount of any non-controlling 2 AT FE 2 A AR %5 A R SR AT RS
interest in the acquiree and the acquisition-date fair WU HE T 2 IR = AU B
value of any previous equity interest in the acquiree Hz AFEBETBEND
over the fair value of the identified net assets FEEFEAFEZHEE-
acquired.
For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill RETRERF REBE G
acquired in a business combination is allocated P BE DO EEERE
to each of the cash-generating units (“CGUs"), BRE BHBRE 2 & BREGE
or groups of CGUs, expected to benefit from the B ([RIVESEAM]) K
synergies of the combination. Each unit or group of —HERBE e EMN - S E DA
units to which the goodwill is allocated represents B BN —HBENAERE
the lowest level within the entity at which the A ERERGE ZHIEE
goodwill is monitored for internal management He-mENKED A BEET
purposes. Goodwill is monitored at the operating BERo
segment level.
Goodwill impairment reviews are undertaken FMESFETHRERS  TE
annually or more frequently if events or changes RBEEFHLRNIERLEER
in circumstances indicate a potential impairment. AR R ER  (EEEE®
The carrying value of goodwill is compared to the wE o BAEREEETKRDS
recoverable amount, which is the higher of value HHEE NAFEHRAEBEREAT
in use and the fair value less costs to sell. Any BERBEEXNAZREE  E
impairment is recognised immediately as an expense MEANRERAMY  BHE
and is not subsequently reversed. TE#E -
(b)  Trademarks, brand name and licence b) EIE -mEEERER
Separately acquired trademarks, the brand name BUWEZEE DEEER
and the licence, which have finite useful lives, AT EARERCAFE I
are carried at cost less accumulated amortisation AR R ET B 8 OB E &
and impairment losses. Amortisation is calculated BARR-BE A AEGER
using the straight-line method to allocate the cost EUKEE DERE RS
of trademarks, brand name and licence over their AT AR ERNFE+F(EET
estimated useful lives of 6 to 10 years. AIEAFEANET DR
(c) Computer software (c) ZEISEAM

Acquired computer software licenses are capitalised
on the basis of the costs incurred to acquire and
bring to use the specific software. These costs are
amortised over their estimated useful lives of 5
years.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e BHRRME

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY
OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

2.8

2.9

2.10

Impairment of non-financial assets

Assets that have an indefinite useful life — for example,
goodwill — are not subject to amortisation and are
tested annually for impairment. Assets that are subject
to amortisation are reviewed for impairment whenever
events or changes in circumstances indicate that the
carrying amount may not be recoverable. An impairment
loss is recognised for the amount by which the asset’s
carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount. The
recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value
less costs to sell and its value in use. For the purposes of
assessing impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest
levels for which there are separately identifiable cash
flows (cash-generating units). Non-financial assets other
than goodwill that suffered an impairment are reviewed
for possible reversal of the impairment at each reporting
date.

Disposal group held for sale

Disposal group is classified as held for sale when its
carrying amount is to be recovered principally through a
sale transaction rather than through continuing use and a
sale is considered highly probable. It is stated at lower of
carrying amount and fair value less costs to sell. Financial
assets, which are classified held for sale, would continue
to be measured in accordance with the policies set out
elsewhere in Note 2.

Financial assets

2.10.1 Classification
The Group classifies its financial assets as loans
and receivables, based on the purpose for which
the financial assets were acquired. Management
determines the classification of its financial assets at
initial recognition.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

ARE T BRRME

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY 2 RUBXERTFESHBEREBE(MA/)
OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

210 BIHEE (&)
2.10.1 748 (&)

2.10 Financial assets (continued)
2.10.1 Classification (continued)

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial
assets with fixed or determinable payments that
are not quoted in an active market. They are
included in current assets, except for amounts
that are settled or expected to be settled more
than 12 months after the end of the reporting
period. These are classified as non-current assets.
The Group's loans and receivables comprise trade
and other receivables (Note 2.12), cash and cash
equivalents (Note 2.13), amount due from the non-
controlling interest of a subsidiary, long-term loan
and receivables, short-term loan to a related party,
restricted cash, short-term bank deposits, loans to
subsidiaries, amounts due from subsidiaries, amount
due from a related party and amount due from an
associate in the balance sheet.

2.10.2 Recognition and measurement

Regular way purchases and sales of financial assets
are recognised on the trade-date — the date on
which the Group commits to purchase or sell the
asset. Loans and receivables are initially recognised
at fair value plus transaction costs and subsequently
carried at amortised cost using the effective interest
method. Financial assets are derecognised when the
rights to receive cash flows from the investments
have expired or have been transferred and the
Group has transferred substantially all risks and
rewards of ownership.

2.10.3 Offsetting financial instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net
amount reported in the balance sheet when there is
a legally enforceable right to offset the recognised
amounts and there is an intention to settle on a
net basis or realise the asset and settle the liability
simultaneously. The legally enforceable right must
not be contingent on future events and must be
enforceable in the normal course of business and
in the event of default, insolvency or bankruptcy of
the company or the counterparty.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e BHRRME

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY 2 RREERTETHRFEEE (/)
OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

210 BIEE (&)
2,104 Ji 1B

2.10 Financial assets (continued)
2.10.4 Impairment

The Group assesses at the end of each reporting
period whether there is objective evidence that
a financial asset or a group of financial assets is
impaired. A financial asset or a group of financial
assets is impaired and impairment losses are
incurred only if there is objective evidence of
impairment as a result of one or more events that
occurred after the initial recognition of the asset (a
‘loss event’) and that loss event (or events) has an
impact on the estimated future cash flows of the
financial asset or group of financial assets that can
be reliably estimated.

Evidence of impairment may include indications
that a debtor or a group of debtors is experiencing
significant financial difficulty, default or delinquency
in interest or principal payments, the probability
that they will enter bankruptcy or other financial
reorganisation, and where observable data indicate
that there is @ measurable decrease in the estimated
future cash flows, such as changes in arrears or
economic conditions that correlate with defaults.

For loans and receivables, the amount of the loss
is measured as the difference between the asset’s
carrying amount and the present value of estimated
future cash flows (excluding future credit losses that
have not been incurred) discounted at the financial
asset’s original effective interest rate. The carrying
amount of the asset is reduced and the amount of
the loss is recognised in the consolidated income
statement. If a loan has a variable interest rate, the
discount rate for measuring any impairment loss
is the current effective interest rate determined
under the contract. As a practical expedient, the
Group may measure impairment on the basis of an
instrument’s fair value using an observable market
price.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

ARE T BRRME

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY
OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

2.10

2.1

2.12

Financial assets (continued)

2.10.4 Impairment (continued)
If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the
impairment loss decreases and the decrease
can be related objectively to an event occurring
after the impairment was recognised (such as an
improvement in the debtor’s credit rating), the
reversal of the previously recognised impairment
loss is recognised in the consolidated income
statement.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Cost is determined using the weighted
average method. The cost of finished goods and work-
in-progress comprises raw materials, direct labour, other
direct costs and related production overheads (based on
normal operating capacity). It excludes borrowing costs.
Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the
ordinary course of business, less applicable variable selling
expenses.

Consumables are included within inventories and stated
at cost, using the weighted average method.

Trade and other receivables

Trade and other receivables are recognised initially at
fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost
using the effective interest method, less provision for
impairment. If collection of trade and other receivables is
expected in one year or less, they are classified as current
assets. A provision for impairment of trade and other
receivables is established when there is objective evidence
that the Group will not be able to collect all amounts due
according to the original terms of the receivables.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e BHRRME

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY
OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

2.12

2.13

2.14

2.15

Trade and other receivables (continued)

The amount of the provision is the difference between
the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of
estimated future cash flows, discounted at the original
effective interest rate. The carrying amount of the assets
is reduced through the use of an allowance account, and
the amount of the loss is recognised in the consolidated
income statement within administrative expenses. When
a trade receivable is uncollectible, it is written off against
the allowance account for trade receivables. Subsequent
recoveries of amounts previously written off are credited
against administrative expenses in the consolidated
income statement.

Cash and cash equivalents

In the consolidated statement of cash flows, cash and
cash equivalents includes cash on hand, deposits held
at call with banks and other short-term highly liquid
investments with original maturities of three months or
less.

Share capital
Ordinary shares are classified as equity.

Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of new
shares or options are shown in equity as a deduction, net
of tax, from the proceeds.

Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables are recognised initially at fair
value and subsequently measured at amortised cost using
the effective interest method. Trade and other payables
are classified as current liabilities if payment is due within
one year or less.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

ARE T BRRME

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY
OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

2.16

2.17

2.18

Borrowings

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value, net of
transaction costs incurred. Borrowings are subsequently
carried at amortised cost; any difference between the
proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the redemption
value is recognised in the consolidated income statement
over the period of the borrowings using the effective
interest method.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the
Group has an unconditional right to defer settlement of
the liability for at least 12 months after the end of the
reporting period.

Borrowing costs

General and specific borrowings costs directly attributable
to the acquisition, construction or production of
qualifying assets, which are assets that necessarily take a
substantial period of time to get ready for their intended
use or sale, are added to the cost of those assets, until
such time as the assets are substantially ready for their
intended use or sale.

All other borrowing costs are recognized in profit or loss
in the period in which they are incurred.

Current and deferred income tax

The tax expense for the period comprises current and
deferred tax. Tax is recognised in the income statement,
except to the extent that it relates to items recognised in
other comprehensive income or directly in equity. In this
case the tax is also recognised in other comprehensive
income or directly in equity, respectively.

(a)  Current income tax
The current income tax charge is calculated on
the basis of the tax laws enacted or substantively
enacted at the balance sheet date in the countries
where the Company’s subsidiaries and associates
operate and generate taxable income. Management
periodically evaluates positions taken in tax returns
with respect to situations in which applicable tax
regulation is subject to interpretation. It establishes
provisions where appropriate on the basis of
amounts expected to be paid to the tax authorities.

2

GREERTETHRREE (E)
2.16 &8

2.17

2.18

F%@*§Q$EW@*%&$&
R EEERIREHERAIIER: T

BRE(MBEZXZEA) BEREE
Mz EAEZEAREERANERE

RABOEN G A Wm R ATER -

[‘%#K%lﬁﬁﬂﬂﬁféﬂ iR =g
BREBABZBEREED T
1Iﬂ BREER I BRRBAEE-

BERA

Wit EERLEEREREE (FE
BEEBETAEREREREEN
EE)BEREAN —REBEEEK
REHARSEENKE BEEEE
AR EAMERERGERBERLE-

FTE H A& B K A9 78 K & 4 B
wRAER-

EHRIELFTSH
HRBIER BIEE B RIRERE -
BREMEZERASEERNESZA
ﬁ&ﬁ%ﬁﬁ%%%mﬁmﬁwm

B VES BIRHM2mRA S EE
F% & A TR

(a) EHAIEH
EHPS A X HIRBEA R
ME AR REERREERE
ERRTRAZBERNEER
ERMGREE R M 2 HEED
SHE-BEEERERRBED
REMRR 2 B E MRHE TR
MR ZMAR > WHEBBBERT
RIBEEHARMBEBS N2
T SRR E Bk ©

Annual Report 2014 £3% 79



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e BHRRME

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY
OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

2.18 Current and deferred income tax (continued)

(b)

Deferred income tax

(i)

(ii)

Inside basis differences

Deferred income tax is recognised, using the
liability method, on temporary differences
arising between the tax bases of assets and
liabilities and their carrying amounts in the
consolidated financial statements. However,
deferred tax liabilities are not recognised
if they arise from the initial recognition
of goodwill, the deferred income tax is
not accounted for if it arises from initial
recognition of an asset or liability in a
transaction other than a business combination
that at the time of the transaction affects
neither accounting nor taxable profit or loss.
Deferred income tax is determined using tax
rates (and laws) that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the balance sheet
date and are expected to apply when the
related deferred income tax asset is realised or
the deferred income tax liability is settled.

Deferred income tax assets are recognised
only to the extent that it is probable that
future taxable profit will be available against
which the temporary differences can be
utilised.

Outside basis differences

income tax is provided on
temporary differences arising on investments
in subsidiaries and associates, except for
deferred income tax liability where the timing
of the reversal of the temporary difference
is controlled by the Group and it is probable
that the temporary difference will not reverse
in the foreseeable future.

Deferred

Deferred income tax assets are recognised on
deductible temporary differences arising from
investments in subsidiaries, associates and
joint arrangements only to the extent that it is
probable the temporary difference will reverse
in the future and there is sufficient taxable
profit available against which the temporary
difference can be utilised.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

ARE T BRRME

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY 2 RUBXERTFESHBEREBE(MA/)
OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

2,18 EMRELFEHR ()

2.18 Current and deferred income tax (continued)

(c)

Offsetting

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are offset
when there is a legally enforceable right to offset
current tax assets against current tax liabilities
and when the deferred income taxes assets and
liabilities relate to income taxes levied by the same
taxation authority on either the taxable entity or
different taxable entities where there is an intention
to settle the balances on a net basis.

2.19 Employee benefits

(a)

Pension obligations

A defined contribution plan is a pension plan
under which the Group pays fixed contributions
into a separate entity. The Group has no legal or
constructive obligations to pay further contributions
if the fund does not hold sufficient assets to pay
all employees the benefits relating to employee
service in the current and prior periods. A defined
benefit plan is a pension plan that is not a defined
contribution plan.

Typically defined benefit plans define an amount
of pension benefit that an employee will receive
on retirement, usually dependent on one or
more factors such as age, years of service and
compensation.

The liability recognised in the balance sheet in
respect of defined benefit pension plans is the
present value of the defined benefit obligation at
the end of the reporting period. The present value
of the defined benefit obligation is determined by
discounting the estimated future cash outflows
using interest rates of high quality corporate bonds
that are denominated in the currency in which
the benefits will be paid, and that have terms to
maturity approximating to the terms of the related
pension obligation. In countries where there is no
deep market in such bonds, the market rates on
government bonds are used.

(c)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

ARE T BHRRME

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY 2 REEERTETHHFEEE (/)
OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

2.19 Employee benefits (continued) 219 EEER (F)

(a)  Pension obligations (continued) (a) RUKZzEMT (&)
The current service cost of a defined benefit plan, REEXRANEERMNAZ —1E
recognised in the income statement in employee TR 2 FE 8 A E &I BN HA BR 75
benefit expense, except where included in the cost AR (5t AEEKANE BRI
of an asset, reflects the increase in the defined KR AFERERBGFTES
benefit obligation results from employee service in ZAERMEMEN BFE
the current year, benefit changes, curtailments and B HR SR AR
settlements.
Past-service costs are recognised immediately in 8 7 AR 7S K AN BD B 7R 98 5 R
profit or loss. R e
Actuarial gains and losses arising from experience MBELEBREEABRRBER
adjustments and changes in actuarial assumptions REBFTEE ZIEE W kg
are charged or credited to equity in other BmE  DRELEZEEAL
comprehensive income in the period in which they Hth2miasz #Eah kst
arise. A
For defined contribution plans, the Group pays HAEHKETEMS  ~5E
contributions to publicly or privately administered MEAERLAREERZR
pension insurance plans on a mandatory, REETEIEL M T 54N E
contractual or voluntary basis. The Group has no [FEME R R A ERE AR
further payment obligations once the contributions SEREAMNRET HK
have been paid. The contributions are recognised as REE X R A E B2 T
employee benefit expense when they are due. Fix e

(b)  Termination benefits (b) IR

Termination benefits are payable when employment
is terminated by the Group before the normal
retirement date, or whenever an employee accepts
voluntary redundancy in exchange for these
benefits. The Group recognises termination benefits
when it is demonstrably committed to a termination
and when the entity has a detailed formal plan to
terminate the employment of current employees
without possibility of withdrawal. In the case of an
offer made to encourage voluntary redundancy, the
termination benefits are measured based on the
number of employees expected to accept the offer.
Benefits falling due more than 12 months after the
end of the reporting period are discounted to their
present value.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e BHRRME

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY 2 HRUBERTFTESHBREBE (/)
OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)
2.19 Employee benefits (continued) 219 EEER (F)

2.20

(c)  Bonus plans
The Group recognises a liability and an expense
for bonuses, based on a formula that takes
into consideration the profit attributable to the
Company's shareholders after certain adjustments.
The Group recognises a provision where
contractually obliged or where there is a past
practice that has created a constructive obligation.

(d)  Employee leave entitlements
Employee entitlements to annual leave are
recognised when they accrue to employees.
Employee entitlements to sick leave and maternity
leave are not recognised until the time of leave.

Contingent liabilities and provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present
legal or constructive obligation as a result of past events;
it is probable that an outflow of resources will be required
to settle the obligation; and the amount has been reliably
estimated. Provisions are not recognised for future
operating losses.

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises
from past events and whose existence will only be
confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one
or more uncertain future events not wholly within the
control of the Group. It can also be a present obligation
arising from past events that is not recognised because
it is not probable that outflow of economic resources
will be required or the amount of obligation cannot be
measured reliably.

A contingent liability, if any, is not recognised but is
disclosed in the notes to the consolidated financial
statements. When a change in the probability of an
outflow occurs so that outflow is probable, it will then be
recognised as a provision.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e BHRRME

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY 2 RREERTETHRFEEE (/)
OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

2.21 Revenue and other income recognition 221 BRKWEREMKA

2.22

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable, and represents amounts receivable
for goods supplied, stated net of discounts, returns and
value added taxes. The Group recognises revenue when
the amount of revenue can be reliably measured; when
it is probable that future economic benefits will flow to
the entity; and when specific criteria have been met for
each of the Group’s activities, as described below. The
Group bases its estimates of return on historical results,
taking into consideration the type of customer, the type
of transaction and the specifics of each arrangement.

(a)  Sales of goods

Sales of goods are recognised when a Group
entity has delivered products to the customer, the
customer has accepted the products and has full
discretion over the channel and price to sell the
products, and there is no unfulfilled obligation
that could affect the customer’s acceptance of the
products.

(b) Interest income

Interest income is recognised on a time-proportion
basis using the effective interest method. When a
loan and receivable is impaired, the Group reduces
the carrying amount to its recoverable amount,
being the estimated future cash flow discounted at
the original effective interest rate of the instrument,
and continues unwinding the discount as interest
income. Interest income on impaired loan and
receivables is recognised using the original effective
interest rate.

(c)  Dividend income
Dividend income is recognised when the right to
receive payment is established.

Leases (as the lessee for operating leases)

Leases in which a significant portion of the risks and
rewards of ownership are retained by the lessor are
classified as operating leases. Payments made under
operating leases (net of any incentives received from the
lessor) are charged to the consolidated income statement
on a straight-line basis over the period of the lease.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

ARE T BRRME

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY
OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

2.23

2.24

Dividend distribution

Dividend distribution to the Company’s shareholders is
recognised as a liability in the Group’s and Company’s
financial statements in the period in which the dividends
are approved by the Company’s shareholders or directors,
where appropriate.

Dividends proposed or declared after the reporting period
but before the consolidated financial statements are
authorised for issue, are disclosed as a non-adjusting
event and are not recognised as a liability at the end of
the reporting period.

Financial guarantees

Financial guarantee contracts under which the Group
accepts significant risk from a third party by agreeing to
compensate that party on the occurrence of a specified
uncertain future event are accounted for in a manner
similar to insurance contracts. Provisions are recognised
when it is probable that the Group has obligations under
such guarantees and an outflow of economic resources
will be required to settle the obligations.

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

3.1

Financial risk factors

The Group's activities expose it to a variety of financial
risks: market risk (including foreign exchange risk and
cash flow and fair value interest rate risks), credit risk
and liquidity risk. The Group's overall risk management
programme focuses on the unpredictability of financial
markets and seeks to minimise potential adverse effects
on the Group's financial performance.

Risk management is carried out by a central treasury
department (group treasury) under policies approved
by the board of directors. Group treasury identifies and
evaluates financial risks in close co-operation with the
Group’s operating units. The board provides principles
for overall risk management, as well as policies covering
specific areas, such as foreign exchange risk, interest rate
risk, credit risk and investment of excess liquidity.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

ARE T BHRRME

3

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.1

Financial risk factors (continued)
Market risk

(a)

(i)

Foreign exchange risk

The Group operates internationally and is
exposed to foreign exchange risk arising
from various currency exposures, primarily
with respect to Vietnam Dong against US$.
Foreign exchange risk arises from future
commercial transactions, recognised assets
and liabilities and net investments in foreign
operations, which the Group does not have
a foreign currency hedging policy. However,
management of the Group monitors foreign
exchange exposure and will consider hedging
significant foreign currency exposure should
the need arise.

At 31 December 2014, if the Vietnam Dong
had weakened/strengthened by 5% against
the US$ with all other variables held constant,
post-tax (loss)/profit for the year would
have been US$834,000 (2013: US$610,000)
higher/lower (2013: lower/higher), mainly as
a result of foreign exchange losses/gains on
translation of Vietnam Dong-denominated
trade and other receivables, cash and cash
equivalents and trade and other payables.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e BHRRME

3

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.1

Financial risk factors (continued)
Market risk (continued)

(a)

(ii)

Cash flow and fair value interest rate risks

As the Group has no significant interest-
bearing assets apart from bank balances, the
Group's income and operating cash flows
are substantially independent of changes in
market interest rates.

The Group's interest rate risk arises from
borrowings. Borrowings issued at variable
rates expose the Group to cash flow interest-
rate risk, and borrowings issued at fixed
rates expose the Group to fair value interest
rate risk, which the directors consider the
exposures to be insignificant. The Group
does not have an interest rate hedging policy.
However, management of the Group monitors
interest rate exposure and will consider
hedging significant interest rate exposure
should the need arise.

At 31 December 2014, if interest rates on
borrowings had been 50 basis points higher/
lower with all other variables held constant,
post-tax (loss)/profit for the year would
have been US$316,000 (2013: US$216,000)
higher/lower (2013: lower/higher), mainly as
a result of higher/lower interest expense on
floating rate borrowings.
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3

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.1

Financial risk factors (continued)

(b)

Credit risk

Credit risk arises from bank deposits and bank
balances, trade receivables, amount due from
the non-controlling interest of a subsidiary, other
receivables and amount due from related parties.

The Group has policies in place to ensure that sales
of products are made to customers with appropriate
credit histories. The Group has policies to assess
the credit quality of the customer, taking into
account its financial position, past experience and
other factors. Individual risk limits are set based on
internal or external ratings. The utilisation of credit
limits is regularly monitored.

The carrying amount of cash and cash equivalents,
trade receivables, amount due from the non-
controlling interest of a subsidiary and other
receivables included in the consolidated balance
sheets represents the Group’s maximum exposure to
credit risk in relation to these financial assets.

For bank deposits and bank balances, the Group
only uses banks and financial institutions with good
reputations. As at 31 December 2014 and 2013, all
the bank balances as detailed in Note 14 are held
in major financial institutions, which are either state
owned or with high credit quality. Management
believes that the credit risk for bank deposits and
bank balances is minimal.
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3

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.1

Financial risk factors (continued)

(b)

(c)

Credit risk (continued)

As at 31 December 2014 and 2013, the amount
due from the non-controlling interest of a subsidiary
is neither past due nor impaired. Given that all the
balance is within credit period, management are of
opinion that the receivable from the non-controlling
interest of a subsidiary is of low credit risk.

No impairment has been provided for other
receivables as at 31 December 2014 and 2013.
Other receivables do not contain impaired assets.
Management are of opinion that these balances are
of low credit risk.

Liquidity risk
Due to the capital intensive nature of the Group's
business, the Group ensures that it maintains
sufficient cash and credit lines to meet its liquidity
requirements.

Management monitors rolling forecasts of the
Group's liquidity reserve which comprises undrawn
borrowing facilities and cash and cash equivalents
(Note 14) on the basis of expected cash flows. The
Group's policy is to regularly monitor current and
expected liquidity requirements and its compliance
with lending covenants, to ensure that it maintains
sufficient reserves of cash and adequate committed
lines of funding from major financial institutions
to meet its liquidity requirements in the short and
longer term.
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3  FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 3 HMERBRETE(HE)
3.1 Financial risk factors (continued) 3.1 HMEEREBEZE (F)
(c)  Liquidity risk (continued) (c) RBELEE (&
The table below analyses the Group's and the THIRIEEEEBEA LI
Company's financial liabilities into relevant maturity HeR TEHAES AR E KA R A
groupings based on the remaining period at the ZHBEaED /EEDIEAR
balance sheet to the contractual maturity date. The ETOM - RERBPAEEZS
amounts disclosed in the table are the contractual EAAGHNATRASRE -
undiscounted cash flows.
Group rEH
Between Between
Less than 1and 2 and Over
1 year 2 years 5 years 5 years Total
-FR -FEZME WEERF BBLE ast
US$'000 US$'000 Us$'000 Us$'000 Us$'000
TEx TEn TEn TEx TEx
At 31 December 2014 RZZ-MEF
+=ZA=+-8
Bank borrowings (Note) BITEE (M) 40,276 9,268 22,017 3,612 75,173
Trade payables BT E SRR 14,546 - - - 14,546
Other payables and H it 1 50E K
accruals E:ER 11,298 - - - 11,298
At 31 December 2013 RZE—=%F
+-A=+-8
Bank borrowings (Note) RITHEE (M) 44,045 1,266 54 887 46,252
Trade payables B E SRR 14,590 - - - 14,590
Other payables and Hi AR
accruals &5t E 5,510 - - - 5,510
Amount due to a ERN—2E@EEAL
related party TR 313 - - - 313
Company AT
Between Between
Less than 1and 2 and Over
1 year 2 years 5 years 5 years Total
-FR -FEZME WEERF BBEE ast
US$'000 US$'000 Us$'000 Us$'000 Us$'000
TEn TEn TEn =X TEx
At 31 December 2014 RZZ-M%F
+=ZA=+-8
Bank borrowings (Note) BITEE (M) 9,486 - - - 9,486
Other payables and H it 1 A R
accruals B ER 389 - - - 389
At 31 December 2013 RZT—=F
+=-A=t-8
Bank borrowings (Note) HITEE (M) 2,571 - - - 2,571
Other payables and EfEMATIER
accruals B ER 350 - - - 350
Amount due to a EN—2E@EEAT
related party MR 313 - - - 313
Note: B o
The balance includes interest payable on bank borrowings FRGEHBREESIHEMER
up to their respective maturities. TEEERNZFE -
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 3

3.2

Capital risk management

The Group’'s objectives when managing capital are to
safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern in order to provide returns for shareholders
and benefits for other stakeholders and to maintain an
optimal capital structure to reduce the cost of capital.

In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure,
the Group may adjust the amount of dividends paid to
shareholders, return capital to shareholders, issue new
shares or sell assets to reduce debt.

Consistent with others in the industry, the Group
monitors capital on the basis of the gearing ratio. This
ratio is calculated as total bank borrowings divided by
owners’ equity as shown in the consolidated balance
sheet. Total borrowings include non-current borrowings
and current borrowings.

During 2014, the Group's strategy, which was unchanged
from 2013, was to maintain a reasonable gearing ratio.

MERRER (F)
3.2 BEXEBRER

ZFEI BEeZHERRERE

B BEFEREELE 2
RERRTERER R BREFE A
RF - ARKERT S 2 EREEE L
B AR o

RTHSNAERENGERE  AEET
BERBBIRN TRERZBRESE Ak

BEEN BOIHBENALEEE
VAR BB 75 o

HMENEMAR K AEENEE
BELESERERER R XIZ
HAEBEEREBERMRZARTEER
BRABEA AR E - RIERE BRI
RBEERRBESR-

R-E—NFE AEEZKKE_T
_iﬁﬁ}mﬁﬂq% B ﬁ( Tﬂﬁﬁé

The gearing ratios at 31 December 2014 and 2013 were ERGELLENEEKF - —m
as follows: FRZF-—=F+-H= ‘|’ Hz
BEABLENT:
Group
TEME
2014 2013
—E-{F —ET—=F
Us$'000 Us$'000
FTEx FEx
Total bank borrowings (Note 19) RIRITIEE (H5E19) 71,553 45,159
Owners’ equity (including non- WA A=
controlling interest in equity) (BIENAEZRZ
FEER ) 267,099 270,157
Gearing ratio BEAGBLX 27% 17%
The increase in gearing ratio is mainly due to increase in EEABEHREFAFTEREARAE

bank borrowings for financing construction of property,
plant and equipment. Management considers that the
current gearing ratio is reasonable.

EE - BERRBREASS BT
EEEN - ERRRARBAEAR
HEBAE-
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3

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.3 Fair value estimation

The carrying values less impairment provisions of trade
and other receivables and trade and other payables are
assumed to approximate their fair values because of
their short maturities. The fair values of financial assets
and liabilities for disclosure purposes are estimated by
discounting the future contractual cash flows at the
current market interest rate that is available to the Group
for similar financial instruments.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and are
based on historical experience and other factors, including
expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable
under the circumstances.

The Group makes estimates and assumptions concerning the
future. The resulting accounting estimates will, by definition,
seldom equal the related actual results. The estimates and
assumptions that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets or liabilities within
the next financial year are addressed below.

(a) Estimated impairment of goodwill
The Group tests annually whether goodwill has suffered
any impairment, in accordance with the accounting policy
stated in Note 2.8. The recoverable amounts of cash-
generating units have been determined based on value-
in-use calculations. These calculations require the use of
estimates and judgements (Note 8).

(b) Estimated impairment of property, plant and
equipment
Property, plant and equipment (Note 7) are reviewed for
impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances
indicate that the carrying amount may not be
recoverable.
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4

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (continued)

(b)

(c)

4

EESsHEERAIER (8])

Estimated impairment of property, plant and (b) YME - BERIENMGTHE (H)
equipment (continued)
The recoverable amount of the property, plant and YIEE - R E RERE 2 P IEl £ R IR R
equipment is determined based on value-in-use FAREBEFE T EMET - BB
calculations. These calculations use pre-tax cash flow ENFRAEEEMZR I AFHT®K
projections based on financial budgets approved BEZBRBAMBREREEANGE -
by management covering a five years period. These ZEFTERGES EEL HE &G
calculations and valuations require the use of judgements 5t e
and estimates.
The key assumptions used for value-in-use calculations BUAHEGRAEE EERENT -
are as follows.
Vietnam
g
2014 2013

—E—mF —E—=F
Selling price growth rate EEERE 7% 5% - 10%
Discount rate IR % 10% 10%
Long term growth rate RHERX nil & nil=
Useful lives of property, plant and equipment and () Y% BERIEBEVNEFLEENEA

intangible assets

The Group’s management determines the estimated
useful lives and related depreciation and amortisation
charges for its property, plant and equipment and
intangible assets by reference to the estimated periods
that the Group intends to derive future economic benefits
from the use of these assets. These estimates are based
on the historical experience of the actual useful lives of
property, plant and equipment and intangible assets of
similar nature and functions. Management will adjust
the depreciation and amortisation charges where useful
lives vary from previously estimates. Actual economic lives
may differ from estimated useful lives. Periodic review
could result in a change in useful lives and therefore
depreciation and amortisation expense in the future
periods.

FH
AEENEEE2EAEBARR
%% E EBS R R EN @ ik
FHEH BEEME BB RREM
BV EEM MR A F AR AE
P8 MR - BRAMET I AL
EE RN - BB MR A E
WEENERERFHNELER
REE B A EAFHEBEMETT
Rl EEEEHETERBHEFAX -
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4 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (continued)

(d) Current income taxes and deferred income taxes
The Group is subject to income taxes in the PRC,
Vietnam and Taiwan. Significant judgement is required in
determining the worldwide provision for income taxes.
There are many transactions and calculations for which
the ultimate tax determination is uncertain. The Group
recognises liabilities for anticipated tax audit issues based
on estimates of whether additional taxes will be due.
Where the final tax outcome of these matters is different
from the amounts that were initially recorded, such
differences will impact the current and deferred income
tax assets and liabilities in the period in which such
determination is made.

Deferred income tax assets relating to certain temporary
differences and tax losses are recognised as management
considers it is probable that future taxable profit will be
available against which the temporary differences or tax
losses can be utilised. Where the expectation is different
from the original estimate, such differences will impact
the recognition of deferred tax assets and income tax
expense in the periods in which such estimate is changed.

(e) Functional currency
The functional currency of each of the Group’s entities
has been determined based on the primary economic
environment in which the entity operates, that is normally
the one in which each of the Group's entities primarily
generates and expends cash. The determination requires
the use of judgment.

5 SEGMENT INFORMATION

The chief operating decision-maker has been identified as
the Executive Directors collectively. The Directors review the
Group's policies and information for the purposes of assessing
performance. The Group presents its operating segment results
(below), based on the information reviewed by the chief
operating decision-maker, and used to make strategic decisions.
This information includes segment revenue, segment capital
expenditures, segment assets, segment non-current assets,
other than financial instruments and deferred income tax assets
and segment liabilities.
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SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

The chief operating decision-maker considers the business
mainly from a geographical aspect. In presenting information
on the basis of operating segments, segment revenue is based
on the geographical presence of customers. Segment capital
expenditures, segment assets, segment non-current assets,
other than financial instruments and deferred income tax assets
and segment liabilities are based on the geographical location
of the assets or liabilities.

The chief operating decision maker mainly assesses the
performance based on revenue derived by each geographical
segment. Accordingly, the segment performance is restricted to
revenue information.

Revenue of approximately US$51,608,000 (2013:
US$60,034,000) is derived from a single external customer.
This revenue is attributable to the MSG/GA segment located in
Japan.

SWHAE ()

FBEBAREISMNBEAITEE
T o SAE 5 5 2 WA R - 9 B UaE A
EFFEBERD HBEAZH 55
BE-ABIRDEE (LRTARET
FiSBEERSIN o BE BRI EER
B EFEE S -

TELEAREIZRESOE D BME
EZWEFERE B D EBRBRER
RUZE R -

W H 46H51,608,000E T (ZE—=
F 1 60,034,000E0) BREE PR
F-rBUWRKEBAZKE 8BS
\Bo

okt

(a) Segment revenue (a) =Wz
2014 2013
—2-mE —F—=

Us$’000 us$'000

FEx FET

Vietnam e} 164,619 168,934

The PRC F 33,842 38,433

Japan SN 74,985 79,967

Taiwan B 14,947 14,908
ASEAN member countries HEKE

(other than Vietnam) (T EBE) 29,787 30,220

Other regions H fih b [= 7,447 9,991

325,627 342,453

2014 2013

—2-mE —E-=F

UsS$’000 us$'000

FEx FET

MSG/GA RiE S Aamk 225,153 239,208

Modified starch/Native starch BB KRR 43,220 44,234

Specialty chemicals FEEM 22,566 23,199

Fertiliser and feed products AE 87 2 21,809 26,736

Others HA 12,879 9,076

325,627 342,453
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mE B RRME
5 SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 5 SEEHE(#E)
(b) Capital expenditure (b) BEAXAXH
2014 2013
—E-DIF —T—=F
Us$’000 us$'000
FEn FET
Vietnam #E 60,565 5,479
The PRC F 817 2,800
61,382 8,279
Capital expenditures are attributed to segments based on &R TR ¥R & FE P AE o i 5 i
where the assets are located. EEDEo
Capital expenditures comprise additions of property, plant BEALTHBERAEME WE M&
and equipment, land use rights and intangible assets. B THERERBEEEE-
(c) Assets () EE
2014 2013
—E-NF —E—-=f
us$’000 us$'000
FEx FET
Vietnam g 318,456 285,697
The PRC 2] 53,586 58,993
Hong Kong BE 5,591 7,527
Taiwan B 724 370
Singapore Fronsg 83 83
Total assets per the balance sheet EEBBRAITBEE 378,440 352,670
Total assets are attributed to segments based on where BEETDRBEEREMMOER
the assets are located. EHER -
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A MR M

(c)

5 SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 5 SWBEH(K)
Assets (continued) () ¥E (#)
Property, plant and equipment are monitored by the ME BMERREREEENEES
management at the operating segment level. The HEEER U TN REEESEHIE
following is a summary of amortisation, depreciation, MEVEEH TERRE TER
impairment of non-current assets, income tax expense X FMEGEE QAR EBEOHME-
and share of loss from associate for each operating
segment.
Amortisation Share of
and Income tax loss from
depreciation Impairment expense associate
PEAL B & 2\ 5]
BERITE B FEBEX %]
UsS$000 Uss$'000 UsS$000 USs$'000
FER FEr FER FEr
2014 —E-mF
Vietnam fogE] 19,241 - 1,238 97
The PRC & 2,334 - 194 -
21,575 - 1,432 97
2013 —E-=F
Vietnam 21| 20,472 - 1,424 32
The PRC i 3,067 - 370 -
23,539 - 1,794 32

(d)

Non-current assets, other than financial instruments

(d) REFRBIZRBEE (EBMIA

and deferred income tax assets, by country: RIETLEFREBHEERMD) ¢

2014 2013
—B-mE —F-=

Us$‘000 Us$'000
FTERT FET
Vietnam A=) 152,019 109,745
The PRC i 24,195 25,848
Hong Kong &5 3,595 4,901
Taiwan =3 - -
Singapore s - -
Total #at 179,809 140,494
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5 SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 5 SEBEH(E)
(e) Liabilities (e) B
2014 2013
—E-NOF —E—=F
Us$‘000 Us$'000
FE5x FEx
Vietnam jigea) 92,353 66,728
The PRC i 8,424 11,902
Hong Kong BE 5,352 1,976
Taiwan Al 5,167 1,863
Singapore g 45 44
Total liabilities per the balance sheet EEBEXRFIRAERALEE 111,341 82,513
6 LAND USE RIGHTS - GROUP 6 THERE-FKH
The Group's interests in land use rights represent prepaid AEERLHEREZ ESEREERNZ
operating lease payments and their net book values are AR FIE HEREFED TN T
analysed as follows:
2014 2013
—E-NF —E—=F
Us$‘000 Us$'000
FERx FEx
Outside Hong Kong, held on EBBUIN BN TF+F
Leases of between 10 to 50 years ER+HF2HENBE 2,767 2,624
At 1 January n—A—H 2,624 2,205
Additions NE 219 406
Amortisation of land use rights b {5 PR 4
(Notes 5 and 23) (P 5E5 % 23) (66) (55)
Exchange differences E W ERE (10) 68
At 31 December R+—A=+—8H 2,767 2,624
In respect of the Group's land use rights, Xiamen Vedan MAEB 2 T FERAEMS  RPREKZ
Foods Co. Ltd (“Xiamen Vedan”), Shandong Vedan Snowflake RigE s MBAREFKSRRBRAA
and Shanghai Vedan Enterprise Co. Ltd (“Shanghai Vedan"”), (TEFIRS]) ~ IWRRFAEER L8R
subsidiaries established and operating in the PRC, have each TEERATD([EERANEEEES
been granted rights to use the land by the relevant authority AERETABAE TN T ERE  »
for 50 years, which expire in 2042, 2056 and 2060 respectively. AIRZZTW=—F  —TERANFRZFTRE

FEm
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7 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT - GROUP 7 ME BERERF -—FKE
Construction- Plant and Motor Office
in-progress Properties machinery vehicles  equipment Total
EEIR L/ES BERKE RE BAERME At
usD'000 usD'000 usD’000 usD’000 usD'000 usD’000
FET TET TERT FET FTERT TERT
At 1 January 2013 R-2-=5-8-8
Cost A 6,946 104,169 405,672 8,601 31,633 557,021
Accumulated depreciation ZiE - (58,852) (309,851) (6,741) (29,154) (404,598)
Accumulated impairment ZiRE - (2,628) (9,147) - (22) (11,797)
Net book amount RHFE 6,946 42,689 86,674 1,860 2,457 140,626
Year ended 31 December 2013 BE-E-=%
TZA=t-HLEE
Opening net book amount FYEmEEE 6,946 42,689 86,674 1,860 2,457 140,626
Additions RE 6,511 264 250 736 87 7,848
Transfer Bz (9,915) 5,286 4,420 - 209 -
Disposals (Note 32) HE (F32) - (55) (197) (19) (8) (279)
Depreciation (Notes 5 and 23) e (MFF5R23) - (5,102) (15,744) (432) (867) (22,145)
Exchange differences ERZER 100 196 350 5 7 658
Closing net book amount FREAFE 3,642 43,278 75,753 2,150 1,885 126,708
At 31 December 2013 R-B-=f+=ZA=+-A
Cost A 3,642 109,771 407,356 8,851 31,359 560,979
Accumulated depreciation 2ETE - (63,865) (322,456) (6,701) (29,452) (422,474)
Accumulated impairment 2 RE - (2,628) (9,147) - (22) (11,797)
Net book amount REFE 3,642 43,278 75,753 2,150 1,885 126,708
Year ended 31 December 2014 BE-E-I%
TZA=t+-HLEFE
Opening net book amount FMREFE 3,642 43,278 75,753 2,150 1,885 126,708
Additions RE 60,132 47 258 554 147 61,138
Transfer BiE (3,005) 769 2,170 - 66 -
Disposals (Note 32) & (FeE32) - (97) (216) (13) - (326)
Depreciation (Notes 5 and 23) W& (MsEsk23) - (4,932) (14,083) (494) (666) (20,175)
Transfer to disposal group EREBELECHERR
held for sale (Note 15) (Ki3E15) (13) (29) - - - (42)
Exchange differences EREE 3) (375) 295 2 () (83)
Closing net book amount FEREBFE 60,753 38,661 64,177 2,199 1,430 167,220
At 31 December 2014 R-Z-EME+=ZA=+-H
Cost BA 60,753 110,414 409,469 9,263 30,404 620,303
Accumulated depreciation ZiE - (69,119) (336,123) (7,064) (28,952) (441,258)
Accumulated impairment L&A E - (2,634) (9,169) - (22) (11,825)
Net book amount REFE 60,753 38,661 64,177 2,199 1,430 167,220
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ARE T BHRRME

7 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT - GROUP 7
(continued)
Certain items of property, plant and equipment of the Group
are pledged as security for the Group’s current and non-current
bank borrowings as follows:

MR - BERRM-FKE (&)

REBETYE BELRRED FEE
TERASEEMBAIE MIERNERIRTTEE 2K
e ST

2014 2013
—F-mF —T=%F
us$’000 Us$'000
SRESOE FEx
Net book amount of pledged property, EEEYE BB M&
plant and equipment (Note 36) BREFE (KisE36) 7,557 15,058

Depreciation expense of US$17,400,000 (2013:
US$18,429,000) has been charged in cost of sales, US$367,000
(2013: US$380,000) in selling and distribution expenses
and US$2,408,000 (2013: US$3,336,000) in administrative
expenses, respectively.

During the year, the Group has capitalised borrowing costs
amounting to US$449,000 (2013:nil) on qualifying assets.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

A MR M

8 INTANGIBLE ASSETS - GROUP AND COMPANY 8 EEEE-FTKREREALF
Group Company
p:3- 3 |
Software Veyu
Goodwill  and licence brand name  Trademarks Total  Trademarks
BE HHERER TR R b il ait 5=
US$'000 US$'000 US$'000 US$'000 US$'000 US$'000
FTET TET TEn =T =T TEn
At 1 January 2013 R-ZZB-=Z%-F-8
Cost A 8,800 1,698 1,142 12,089 23,729 12,089
Accumulated amortisation L #E - (891) (798) (9,470) (11,159) (9,470)
Accumulated impairment ZERE - - (344) - (344) -
Net book amount RHEFE 8,800 807 2,619 12,226 2,619
Year ended 31 December 2013 BHE-Z-=F
+ZA=t+-ALEE
Opening net book amount FNEBFE 8,800 807 - 2,619 12,226 2,619
Additions nE - 25 - - 25 -
Amortisation charge (Notes 5 and 23) #8557 % (Ki5E55%23) - (130) (1,209) (1,339) (1,209)
Exchange differences EREE 251 - - - 251 -
Closing net book amount FREBFE 9,051 702 - 1,410 11,163 1,410
At 31 December 2013 R=B-=ZF+=B=+-8
Cost A 9,051 1,723 - 12,089 22,863 12,089
Accumulated amortisation ZHEY - (1,021) - (10,679) (11,700) (10,679)
Net book amount REFE 9,051 702 - 1,410 11,163 1,410
Year ended 31 December 2014 BE-E-I%F
TZAZt+-ALEE
Opening net book amount FNREFE 9,051 702 - 1,410 11,163 1,410
Additions RE - 25 - - 25 -
Amortisation charge (Notes 5 and 23)  #$5H (Hi7E5%23) - (125) - (1,209) (1,334) (1,209)
Exchange differences ERERE (32) - - - 32) -
Closing net book amount FREAZE 9,019 602 - 201 9,822 201
At 31 December 2014 R-ZB-WE+=-A=+-H
Cost A 9,019 1,748 - 12,089 22,856 12,089
Accumulated amortisation B 3 - (1,146) - (11,888) (13,034) (11,888)
Net book amount BREFE 9,019 602 - 201 9,822 201
Amortisation charge is included in administrative expenses. BRI AITHAE
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ARE T BHRRME

8 INTANGIBLE ASSETS - GROUP AND COMPANY 8

(continued)

Impairment tests for goodwill:

Goodwill is attributed to the Group’s CGUs according to

BERE-FRERFTLF (&)

B ERH

BETRBEAEELED B EEMIE

operating segment. D ENL o
The PRC Vietnam
s M
MSG MSG
packaging packaging Total
Tk A5 B % R k2 aat
Us$'000 Us$'000 Us$'000
FET FET FET
At 31 December 2014 RIZ-—MFE+-_H=+—H 8,289 730 9,019
At 31 December 2013 RZZE—=F+=ZA=+—H 8,321 730 9,051

The recoverable amount of a CGU is determined based on
value-in-use calculations. These calculations use pre-tax cash
flow projections based on financial budgets approved by
management covering a five years period. Cash flows beyond
the five years period are extrapolated using the estimated
growth rates stated below if applicable. The growth does
not exceed the long-term average growth rate for the MSG
packaging segment in which the CGU operates.

The key assumptions used for the value-in-use calculation
of the goodwill in the PRC MSG packaging segment are as

BRIV © B 2 A B 35 A5t 0 A
EEZHREE RSB EAER TR
Btk 2 BA M REE S 2 BB AR
SREBART BEATH2RALRE
{8 LA T B 251 2 fis 3t R K 8 (8
) o RS B MR R © 5 i1 7 8
ZHERRDBHRMFYERE

AU EGBERERESBEREE LT
ZRBWT -

follows.
The PRC
H
2014 2013
—E-DIF —F—=
Sales volume HEE 2% - 19% 3% - 19%
Sales price HERE 3% - 12% 3% — 4%
Gross margin EF = 23.6% - 34.9% 24.4% - 26.6%
Other operating costs BFEMSERR
per annum (US$'000) (F=71) 3,402 3,694
Annual capital expenditure BFFEEARME
per annum (US$'000) (F=1) 279 207
Long term growth rate REPER X 3.5% 3.5%
Pre-tax discount rate BRIIT IR X 15% 15%
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INTANGIBLE ASSETS - GROUP AND COMPANY
(continued)

These assumptions have been used for the analysis of each
CGU within the operating segment.

Growth rate of sales volume is the average annual growth
rate over the five years forecast period. It is based on past
performance and management’s expectations of market
development. Growth rate of sales price is the average annual
growth rate over the five years forecast period. It is based
on current industry trends and includes long term inflation
forecasts for each territory.

Management determined budgeted gross margin based on past
performance and its expectations of market developments. The
discount rates used are pre-tax and reflect specific risks relating
to the relevant operating segments.

Other operating costs are the fixed costs of the CGUs, which do
not vary significantly with sales volumes or prices. Management
forecasts these costs based on the current structure of the
business, adjusting for inflationary increases and these do not
reflect any future restructurings or cost saving measures. The
amounts disclosed above are the average operating costs for
the five-year forecast period.

Annual capital expenditure is the expected cash costs in the
MSG repackaging segment for adding property, plant and
equipment. This is based on the historical experience of
management in the Vedan group. No incremental revenue or
cost savings are assumed in the value-in-use model as a result
of this expenditure.

Management believes that any reasonably possible changes
in the key assumptions on which the recoverable amounts of
goodwill are based would not cause the recoverable amounts to
fall below the carrying amounts.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e BHRRME

8

BRERE-FRERFLF (&)

REBRARHNELS BRERRHS
B -

HESNEREAMFRAPTHFER
T RBBEBERRLEEBEHTHER
MIEMEH - HEBNERERSTFEN
HFrHFRER TERERTEBS
S YEA SR RIBRER -

ERENRBEBEXEERAEYMISER
ZHEHBEEREEN X -FIRFTRETIHR
AITIR X WIRMRARRE L & D #B 2 FE R

i o
A

HoAth 48 & B TS BRERIR & B8 (L Y [E] TE X
A AT HEHEEXHEERREY B
BEANREEGERBIYZERA I
FBKR EHELREE  BEDILERRE
Al RR B AE ok BT A AR A B o Ll 4R FR
SREDOFTRHN T HEERK-

FEEARXIRBRBEDMAEME
R M i ) TR HAIR S BOAS It T E IR
HEBEEENEELRGH -LEHARN
ARSI B E R A R A
AETHIRIE I

EEERE BENTRESEMKED
TEBRENTAAETREHTISEUA
A el 2 BRI R E -
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A MR M

RHEBARZRBT BFHRELATZ
HRREHMELARRA-FLFE

9 INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES, LOANS TO 9
SUBSIDIARIES AND AMOUNTS DUE FROM
SUBSIDIARIES - COMPANY

(a) Investments in subsidiaries () RHEBARZRE
2014 2013
—E-NF —E—=fF
US$’000 uUs$'000
EETT FET
Unlisted shares E i) 166,030 166,030

The following is a list of the principal subsidiaries at 31

December 2014:

TRR —E-—NFE+-HA=+—

AZE2ME

nal:

Proportion of

Proportion of
ordinary shares

Place of incorporation/ Particulars of ordinary shares held by
establishment and issued/paid up held by non-controlling
kind of legal entity Principal activities and share capital the Group interest
Name HMAYL/ RIS place of operation BRT/HR FEEREC  FEREREEZ
%R NREERBRER TEEBREEHE RAFE EERLA LR LA
Directly held:
ERERE:
Winball Investment Limited British Virgin Islands Investment holding in Hong Kong 100 Ordinary shares of 100% -
("BVI") EEBREER US$ 1 each
RERLHE 100 B EE
IRTHERR
Talent Top Investment Ltd. BVI Investment holding in Hong Kong 100 Ordinary shares of 100% -
RERTES EEEREER US$1 each
100 BREE
1XTHERR
Indirectly held:
BEHE
Burghley Enterprise Pte., Ltd. Singapore Investment holding in Singapore US$61,109,000 100% -
g EFMERERR Ordinary shares
61,109,000
EnERK
Ordino Investments Pte., Ltd. Singapore Investment holding in Singapore US$20,177,000 100% -
g ERMEREER Ordinary shares
20,177,000
ETERR
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A MR M

RHBARZRRT BFHRELAFTZ
HEREEHRRELATRR-FLF

9 INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES, LOANS TO 9
SUBSIDIARIES AND AMOUNTS DUE FROM

SUBSIDIARIES - COMPANY (continued) (&)
(a) Investments in subsidiaries (continued) (a) MMIBARZEKRE ()
Proportion of
Proportion of  ordinary shares
Place of incorporation/ Particulars of ordinary shares held by
establishment and issued/paid up held by  non-controlling
kind of legal entity Principal activities and share capital the Group interest
Name EMBL/ AL place of operation BRT/HR rEEBEY  FEREREBEZ
£8 NREEERER TEERREERY RAHE EERLA BB Al
Vedan (Vietnam) Enterprise Vietnam Manufacturing and sale of fermentation- 131,970,000 99.9% 0.1%
Corporation Limited Wi based food additives and hiochemical Ordinary shares of (Note 37)
WY (88 RHBERAA products and cassava starch-based US$1 each (H3E37)
industrial products including MSG, 131,970,000/ § A E
GA, modified starch, glucose syrup, [E:ok3 0
soda and acid in Vietnam and for
export
EHBEERHERBRRTMA
EERRAERNISER
BERR T RERGHELR
Orsan Vietnam Co., Ltd. Vietnam Packaging and sales of MSG in Vietnam 1,838,282 Ordinary shares 100% -
(Note 15) (F#3E15) e EHERERHERE of US$1 each
1838282 5 EMA
1ETHERR
Shandong Vedan Snowflake PRC, limited liability Manufacture and sale of MSG in the PRC ~ US$17,200,000 70% 30%
Enterprise Co., Ltd. company EPBRLEERHERE Registered capital
WRFASEEXERAA PE AREMAR 17,200,000% L&A
Shanghai Vedan Enterprise PRC, limited liability Packaging and sale of MSG in the PRC US$9,800,000 100% -
Co. Ltd. company EPERERHERE Registered capital
HERACEERAR PE-FREALA 9,800,000% it E AR
Xiamen Vedan Foods Co. Ltd. PRC, limited liability Packaging and sale of MSG in the PRC US$20,270,000 100% -
EMRARRERAF company EPERERHERE Registered capital
PE BREERA 20,270,005 T AER
Xiamen Darong Import & PRC, limited liability Trading of cassava starch-based US$254,000 100% -
Export Trade Co., Ltd. company industrial products in the PRC Registered capital
EMARELOESERAR PE-FREFLA ErHEEAZRNIEER 254,000% T MER
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ARE T BHRRME

9 INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES, LOANS TO 9
SUBSIDIARIES AND AMOUNTS DUE FROM
SUBSIDIARIES - COMPANY (continued)

(b) Loans to subsidiaries and amounts due from

subsidiaries

(i) As at 31 December 2014, the non-current loans to
subsidiaries of US$2,218,000 and US$5,000,000
are unsecured, carried an interest at three-month
SIBOR plus 1% and six-month LIBOR plus 2.8% per
annum, denominated in US$ and repayable on 31
July 2016 and 15 April 2019 respectively. (2013:
US$2,218,000, unsecured, carried an interest at
three-month SIBOR plus 1%, denominated in US$
and repayable on 31 July 2016).

(i)  As at 31 December 2014, the current loan to
subsidiaries is nil. (2013: US$54,000 is unsecured,
carried an interest at three-month SIBOR plus
3.25% per annum, denominated in US$ and
repayable on 31 December 2014).

(iii)  Amounts due from subsidiaries are unsecured,
interest-free, denominated in US$ and repayable on
demand.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e BmERME
10 INVESTMENT IN AN ASSOCIATE, SHORT-TERM 10 R—HBREAFRZERE KT —RHB
LOAN TO AN ASSOCIATE AND AMOUNT DUE ELAFICEHERRER—MEEL
FROM AN ASSOCIATE - GROUP AND COMPANY FAZRE-FXKERFATF
(a) Investment in an associate (a) N—HEHEEQTIZRE
Company
AT
2014 2013
—EF-mF —F=F
US$'000 Us$'000
FEx FET
Unlisted shares, at cost JE MR (IRECAS) 3,788 3,788
Movement on the investment in an associate is as follows: R—EBE AR ZREZEEHNT :
Group Company
rEE PN
2014 2013 2014 2013
—E-NE —Z—= —E-NE —ZT—=
US$'000 US$'000 US$'000 US$'000
FEx FET FEx FETL
At 1 January ®—A—8 3,490 3,042 3,788 3,308
Injection of share capital ;£ ABEZR - 480 - 480
Share of post-tax loss of L — 5 & A &)
an associate MrFi1& B 1B (97) (32) = -
At 31 December ®n+=ZA=+—H 3,393 3,490 3,788 3,788

Nature of investment in an associate as at 31 December
2014 and 2013:

RZE—WHFER=ZFT—=F+=A
=t+t—H8 R—EBEARZIRENE

BT
Country of Particulars of % Measurement
Name Incorporation issued share capital interest held method
=L HEf A LER ERTRAFE FEEZE% FERE
Dacin International The Cayman Islands 4,100,000 shares of 30 Equity
Holdings Limited REeHs US$1 each Rk
EMBEBZERER AR 4,100,000/

BhEEIET KRG

The associate is principally engaged in real estate
development in Vietnam. As of 31 December 2014, the
associate has not commenced any projects.

Dacin International Holdings Limited is a private company
and there is no quoted market price available for its
shares.

ZHENRETENUEREEHE
BRE-RN_Z—NF+_A=+—
B ZEE AR ARG ERIER -

EMERZERBRARRLARE
BEM A I BT 5 RAE -
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ARE T BHRRME

10

INVESTMENT IN AN ASSOCIATE, SHORT-TERM 10
LOAN TO AN ASSOCIATE AND AMOUNT DUE
FROM AN ASSOCIATE - GROUP AND COMPANY

R—MBELRZRE BT —MAH
EAFICERRREL—MBELQ
FIZREA-FRERFLF (&)

(continued)
(a) Investment in an associate (continued) (a) R—BEBLRARAZELE (#)
There is capital commitment amounting to US$2,632,000 AEERZBERNRZERESR
(2013: US$2,632,000) in relation to the Group's 2,632,000 (& — =%
investment in the associate. 2,632,000% 70 ) 2 B ARAIE -
Reconciliation of summarised financial information BRERBELHE
2014 2013
—F-HmE —F—=
Us$'000 Us$'000
FEx FET
Net assets as at 1 January R—B—HZEEFRE 11,634 10,139
Loss for the year FANEE (325) (105)
Injection of share capital JE AR A - 1,600
Net assets as at 31 December R+=—H=+—-H%2
EEFE 11,309 11,634
Interest in an associate (30%) N—EBER A 2w
(30%) 3,393 3,490
(b) Short-term loan to an associate (b) #HF—HEEQATAZEHER
The short-term loan to an associate is unsecured, bears BT RHBERARZEHERABE
interest at 3.5% per annum, denominated in US$ and is W IR FFIERIS%ER B AE
repayable on 16 September 2014. TEHE  WAEARZZ—HFEAR TR
HEE-
() Amount due from an associate (0 ER—EELATZNE

As at 31 December 2014, the amount due from an
associate is US$123,000, which is unsecured, interest
free, denominated in US$ and is repayable on demand
(2013: nil).
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e R &M EE
11 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY - 11 BRENBSZEMIR-FKRERF
GROUP AND COMPANY N
2014 2013
—E-NF —ET—=F
US$'000 Us$'000
FEn F=E=T
Group AEE
Loans and receivables ER & EWEIE
— Long-term loan and receivables (Note 13) — & HI & 7k K& g W FU 1A
(Mi5E13) 165 117
— Trade receivables (Note 13) — B E SR
(Mi5E13) 25,981 30,741
— Amount due from non-controlling — R —RENB R A
interest of a subsidiary FEPE IR 2 IR 933 1,445
— Amount due from a related party — Bl —BEBAEALZ
(Note 35(d)) 1 (KFEE35(d)) 1,146 -
— Amount due from an associate —ER—HEE AR Z
(Notes 10(c) and 35(d)) I (KsE10(0) &
35(d)) 123 -
— Short-term loan to an associate — BT —HBE R
(Notes 10(b) and 35(d)) HHER
(Mt #E10(b) }235(d) ) - 9
— Other receivables — current portion — H e W kI8
—EVEA &R 1 649 652
— Short-term bank deposits (Note 14(a)) —RHERITIE R
(HMi3E14(a)) 3,463 3,013
— Restricted cash (Note 14(b)) —ZRHRE
(B EE14(b)) 4,249 4,264
— Cash and cash equivalents (Note 14(a)) —RekReEEY
(MizE14Ga)) 37,491 39,496
Assets as per balance sheet BEABRKRMTZEE 74,200 79,824
Financial liabilities at amortised cost REIHK A EZ
MBaE
- Trade payables (Note 18) — BB SR
(HizE18) 14,546 14,590
— Other payables and accruals —Hib B RIER
EETERA 11,298 5,510
— Amount due to a related party - EN—BE#@AEALTZ
(Note 35(d)) IE (ME5E35(d)) - 313
- Bank borrowings (Note 19) —RITEE (M7E19) 71,553 45,159
Liabilities as per balance sheet BEABERMTZEE 97,397 65,572
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GEMBmERME
11 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY - 11 RENSZEMIA-FEERF
GROUP AND COMPANY (continued) NFE (#8)
2014 2013
—ZE—F —E—=F
us$’000 us$'000
FEx FET
Company ¥ YN
Loans and receivables B & EW kI8
— Amounts due from subsidiaries — R B A F)Z5kI8
(Note 9(b)) (FF7E9(b) ) 38,738 41,640
- Loans to subsidiaries (Note 9(b)) —BTHBRARZER
(B EE9(D) ) 7,218 2,272
— Amount due from an associate — R — R QR 2 RIE
(Notes 10(c) and 35(d)) (P #E10(c) }235(d) ) 123 -
— Short-term loan to an associate KT —RHEBERRZ
(Notes 10(b) and 35(d)) EHEIE R (MIFE10(b)
K35(d)) - 96
— Other receivables — H h JE W 38 166 63
— Short-term bank deposits (Note 14(a)) — BRI A (MY sE14(a)) 2,059 2,066
— Cash and cash equivalents (Note 14(a)) —BekREFEEY
(F=E14(a)) 909 1,076
Assets as per balance sheet BEABRMTZEE 49,213 47,213
Financial liabilities at amortised cost BEMERAGTEZVEAE
— Other payables and accruals —Hib R RIERER B R 389 350
— Amount due to a related party —-EN—RB@EEATZ
(Note 35(d)) RIE (M E35(d)) - 313
- Bank borrowings (Note 19) —RITEE (MHiE19) 9,276 2,502
Liabilities as per balance sheet BEBBERARAZAE 9,665 3,165
12 INVENTORIES - GROUP 12 FE-F5%H
2014 2013
—E-mF —ET—=F
uUs$’000 Us$'000
SRESOE FET
Consumables JBREM 4,551 4,726
Raw materials JR 38,662 46,012
Work in progress & m 9,088 26,594
Finished goods BUAK fh 52,474 37,870
104,775 115,202
The cost of inventories of US$237,639,000 (2013: FEMRA /237,639,000 L (=T —=
US$255,791,000) has been charged in cost of sales. #F :255,791,000% 7T ) EFF ASHE KA -
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ARE T BRRME

13 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES - GROUP AND 13 BRESERREMEBEKRRE-XE

COMPANY BR*FEAT
Group Company
REE KAH
2014 2013 2014 2013

—E-NEFE —_T-=F ZB-OF _T-—=F
us$’000 Us$'000 us$’000 Us$'000
FEx FE FEx FEx

Trade receivables from FBRE=ZFESER
third parties 27,651 32,477 - -
Less: provision for W EE SR
impairment of BB
trade receivables (1,670) (1,736) - -
Trade receivables — net EREZER—FE 25,981 30,741 = -
Prepayments AT IR 14,337 13,659 1,536 1,825
Other receivables H h fE R IE 814 769 166 63
41,132 45,169 1,702 1,888
Less: non-current portion of & : E & I 5K IE 2
other receivables JEBNER &L 1D (165) (117) = -
Current portion B HR EB 15 40,967 45,052 1,702 1,888
As at 31 December 2014, all non-current receivables are due RZZE—WNFE+_A=+—H 23N
within five years from the end of the year (2013: same). HERZIERFEBRTRAFRIE (=
T—=F HA) °
The fair values of trade and other receivables are as follows: FEUE 5 AR SR N AL fth FE U SR IE 2 A F{E 4R
T
Group Company
AEE AATF
2014 2013 2014 2013
—E—{mFgE —FT—= —E-—{mOFE —FT—=

US$'000 Us$'000 US$'000 Us$'000
FTXR T FTXR TET

Trade receivables — net KRB ZER— 58 25,981 30,741 = -
Other receivables H A i W R IR 856 795 166 63
26,837 31,536 166 63
The fair values of other receivables are based on cash flows Hip el R IB 2 A FETDRBIRE (ZF
discounted using the borrowing rate of 12% (2013: 12%). This —ZERE)ZEENEFRE BN
discount rate reflects the LIBOR plus appropriate credit rating EREEFE ZMRERBBBRITHE
of the Group. The fair values are within level 2 of the fair value ERERAEEZREERAFR-ZER
hierarchy. FTEBRATFEEBR2E -
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e BHRRME

13 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES - GROUP AND 13
COMPANY (continued)

The credit terms of trade receivables range from cash on
delivery to 60 days and the ageing of the trade receivables
based on invoice date is as follows:

BEEZEFRRAMEBERRE -FE
BRFEAF ()

B SEFRZEEHRAERNIEZE60
K MEKESERIZEZBHIERSY
W

Group

rEH
2014 2013
—ZT-F —T—=F
Us$‘000 Us$'000
FEr FErx
0 - 30 days 0230K 20,611 21,004
31 - 90 days 31290K 3,469 7,128
91 - 180 days 912180k 1,830 1,660
181 — 365 days 1812365k 52 786
Over 365 days 365K A I 1,689 1,899
27,651 32,477

As of 31 December 2014, trade receivables of US$23,229,000
(2013: US$26,780,000) were fully performing.

As of 31 December 2014, trade receivables of US$2,752,000
(2013: US$3,961,000) were past due but not considered
impaired. These relate to a number of independent customers
for whom there is no significant financial difficulty and based
on past experience, it is considered that the overdue amounts
can be recovered. The ageing of those past due but not
impaired receivables is as follows:

RZFE—WmWF+=_A=Z+—8"
23,229,0003 7T ( —Z— =4 : 26,780,000
ETL)ERREZERZHBRI -
R-ZE—F+=-HA=+—H" 2,752,000
—ZE—=%:3,961,000%T)ZE
EREEHERANARE - EH
RERETUWEEAMBRE 2 BIRP
B BRBEBTAR @BRERRAE
ATEUR - 2 EE B HRE I R E 2 B UK
B2 ERDTAT

=
T
i}
§ﬂ] —~

Group

rEH
2014 2013
—ZET-NF —E—=F
us$’000 US$'000
FEx FEx

Overdue by GIR

0 - 90 days 0ZE90K 2,452 2,708
91 - 180 days 91E180K& 244 1,202
Over 180 days 180K £ 56 51
2,752 3,961
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ARE T BRRME

13 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES - GROUP AND 13 BRESERREMEBEKRRE-XE

COMPANY (continued) BRERELAF ()

As of 31 December 2014, trade receivables of US$1,670,000 R-ZZE—NF+=-_A=+—H" 1,670,000
(2013: US$1,736,000) were considered impaired. The amount EX(ZE—=%:1,736,000%J1) 2 [E
of the provision made was US$1,670,000 as of 31 December KB SEFRERAERE- R —HO
2014 (2013: US$1,736,000). The ageing of these receivables is F+ZA=+—BELNEBESEAR
as follows: 1,670,000% ;L (=& — =% :1,736,000

ET) cRERBFIAEMRROMAT

Group
rEH
2014 2013
—EB-mEF —E—=F
Us$‘000 Us$'000
FERT FEx
Overdue by %0 HA
0 - 90 days 0E90K - -
91 — 180 days 912180k - -
181 — 365 days 1812365k - 44
Over 365 days 365K I 1,670 1,692
1,670 1,736
The carrying amounts of the trade and other receivables are JE W B 5 i 0 B HL A [ W R TE 2 BRI (B 2
denominated in the following currencies: T3 EEE:
Group Company
rEE AR
2014 2013 2014 2013
—E-NE —_T-=F ZB-OmF —_T-=F
US$'000 Us$'000 US$'000 Us$'000
TEx FET TEx FET
Vietnam Dong HMEE 27,565 21,375 = -
Us dollar ET 6,976 17,888 1,536 1,799
New Taiwan dollar ek 199 88 166 89
Renminbi ARE 6,392 5,818 = -

41,132 45,169 1,702 1,888
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e BHRRME

13

TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES - GROUP AND
COMPANY (continued)

Movements on the Group’s provision for impairment of trade
receivables are as follows:

WU RBERREMERE &%
MEELE ()

7 B 2 U 5 BR HOR (B By g
mT

Group
rEH
2014 2013
—EF-mF —F=F
Us$‘000 Us$'000
FEx FEx
At 1 January m—H—H 1,736 1,609
Provision for receivables impairment FE W R IB BB B E
(Note 23) (HMt3E23) - 160
Receivables written off during the year FR\EEREIHEZ
as uncollectible JE U BR 3R (45) -
Unused amounts reversed (Note 23) EEERBEE (M5E23) (21) (33)
At 31 December m+—A=+—8~ 1,670 1,736

The creation and release of provision for impaired receivables
have been included in administrative expenses in the
consolidated income statement (Note 23). Amounts charged to
the allowance account are generally written off when there is
no expectation of recovering additional cash.

The other classes within trade and other receivables do not
contain impaired assets.

The maximum exposure to credit risk at the balance sheet date
is the carrying value of each class of receivable mentioned
above. The group does not hold any collateral as security.
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FEMBmERME
14 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, SHORT-TERM 14 BeRBESEFEY HHBTERR
BANK DEPOSITS AND RESTRICTED CASH - ZERHARE-FEEARFAF
GROUP AND COMPANY
(a) Cash and cash equivalents and short-term bank (a) BERBREEEBYREHRITER
deposits
The remittance of these funds out of the PRC and ZEEeERPRRBEAESTH
Vietnam is subject to exchange restrictions imposed by B 1% 8 R AT A SN BE B I e

the PRC and Vietnamese governments.

Group Company
rEE N
2014 2013 2014 2013

—E-NEFE —_T-=F ZB-OF _T—=F
Us$'000 Us$'000 Us$’000 Us$'000
FER FET FER FEx

Short-term bank [REIHI A AR
deposits with original =EAZEHR
maturity over three T1FR
months 3,463 3,013 2,059 2,066
Cash at bank and on RITRFHERS
hand 37,491 39,496 909 1,076
40,954 42,509 2,968 3,142
The Group's and the Company's cash and cash AEBRARFB 2R RREEE
equivalents and short-term bank deposits are Y REHRITIF RIEA T EEEE
denominated in the following currencies:
Group Company
AEME b N
2014 2013 2014 2013

—E-NFE —T—=F ZET-WNF —ZT—=F
uss$’000 Us$'000 Uss$’000 us$'oo0
Fxx F=ET Fxx F=T

Vietnam Dong WA 12,077 9,197 - -
Us dollar E 19,155 20,458 473 736
Renminbi AR 9,299 12,531 2,072 2,083
Hong Kong dollar BT 44 64 44 64
New Taiwan dollar e 375 259 375 259
Others H b 4 - 4 -

40,954 42,509 2,968 3,142
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e BHRRME

14 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, SHORT-TERM
BANK DEPOSITS AND RESTRICTED CASH -
GROUP AND COMPANY (continued)

(@) Cash and cash equivalents and short-term bank

14 BeRASFER/Y EHBTERR
ZERARS-FREARELF ()

(a) BRERRESEBEYREHRRTER

deposits (continued) (%)
The effective interest rates per annum of the Group at the REEER - NEE 2 BEREHEE
end of the reporting period were as follows. IR o
Group Company
rEE b N
2014 2013 2014 2013
—E-NFE —T—=F ZTB-WNF —T-=F
Short-term bank [REIHI R AR
deposits with original =EAzEH
maturity over three RITER
months 4.3% 5.7% 3.6% 3.6%

(b) Restricted cash
As at 31 December 2014, US$4,249,000 (2013:
US$4,264,000) are restricted deposits denominated in
Renminbi held at bank as reserve for serving of a bank
borrowing (Note 36).

15 DISPOSAL GROUP HELD-FOR-SALE

The assets and liabilities related to Orsan Vietnam Co., Ltd, a
wholly owned subsidiary of the Group, have been presented
as disposal group held for sale following the approval of the
Group’'s management on 31 December 2014 to sell Orsan
Vietnam Co., Ltd in Vietnam to a third party. The transaction
has been completed on 9 March 2015.

(a) Assets of disposal group classified as held for sale

(b) ZRHEHBEL
RZE—WNWF+=A=+—H"
4,249,000k T (=ZF —=F :
4,264,000 7T) AFEREERIT
BEZREMTHRRBITZARE
FHEXRHFR (MiE36) o

15 BHEHEZHEAR
EAEBEREER-_Z—NE+=-A
=+—B#L - B Orsan Vietnam Co.,
Ld(AEEZE2EWNBRR) HET &
¥ =771 > EOrsan Vietnam Co., Ltd#H 73
ZEERBBECEARELRECHEA
AMEH - ZRXEGHR_FE—AF=ZANAR
Bk o

(a) PERBEHECHELRCEE

2014 2013
—E-NF =%
us$’000 Us$'000
SPESom FET
Property, plant and equipment M- RE R

(Note 7) B (MEE7) 42 -
Cash and cash equivalent RehkBE2EEYD 313 -

Trade and other receivables JEWE ZER K
H {8 YRR 1,571 -
1,926 -
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ARE T BRRME

15 DISPOSAL GROUP HELD-FOR-SALE (continued) 15

(b) Cumulative income or expense recognised in other

BEHE2HEAR ()
(b) REMEERATEIEIERF

comprehensive income relating to disposal group EFHEZHEARMBEE 2R WA
classified as held for sale B3
2014 2013
—F-mF ==
us$’000 Us$'000
FER FEx
Foreign exchange translation ME 5, 5 B
adjustments - -
Total @t - -
16 SHARE CAPITAL - GROUP AND COMPANY 16 REA-ZFEERAXQA
Authorised ordinary shares
EEEBER
Par value Number
uUss$ of shares US$'000
H{E
EY ROEE FErx
At 31 December 2014 and R =—Z—[MM4E
31 December 2013 +ZA=+—HxX
—FE—=F+=-A=+—H 0.01 10,000,000,000 100,000

Issued and fully paid ordinary shares

ERTRABEEER
Par value Number of
uUs$ shares uss$’000
HE
E BHEE FEx
At 31 December 2014 and R -—Z—PO4F
31 December 2013 +ZA=+—H%
—E-=F+=-A=+—H 0.01 1,522,742,000 15,228
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A MBRENE
17 RESERVES - GROUP AND COMPANY 17 G- FEEARFLT
(a) Group (a) E=&EH
Merger
Share Other reserve Retained
Premium Reserve (Note) earnings Total
EOtEE
R4 B E Htrfik (H3E) REBF kel
Us$'000 Us$'000 Us$'000 Us$'000 US$'000
TEn TEn TEn TEn TEx
At 1 January 2013 RZE-=F—H—H 47,358 15,438 79,994 114,392 257,182
Comprehensive income  2ERA
Profit for the year REREF - - - 1,488 1,488
Other comprehensive ~ EIZEWA
income
Currency translation EREH
differences - 1,748 - - 1,748
Total comprehensive ZERAEE
income - 1,748 - 1,488 3,236
Total transaction RBEBAZHERSE
with owners
Dividends paid relating ~ —F——FR-FT—-=F
t0 2012 and 2013 FHERZERBRS
interim period - - - (3,741) (3,741)
At 31 December 2013 RZZE-=F+ZA=+—H 47,358 17,186 79,994 112,139 256,677

118 Vedan International (Holdings) Limited Bk BB (#25%) HR A =



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

17 RESERVES - GROUP AND COMPANY (continued)

(a)

Group (continued)

At 1 January 2014 RZZE-mE-A—-H
Comprehensive income  ZEHA
Loss for the year KEEER
Other comprehensive ~ EfE2EKRA
income
Currency translation ERER
differences
Total comprehensive D ON £l
income
Total transactions HEBAZARSE

with owners
Changes in ownership
interests in a subsidiary
without change of
control (Note 37)

TREHEHERZD 2B
A NEDEE (H537)

At 31 December 2014

Note:

17 fER-FRERFLT ()
() #%ME (&)

Merger
Share Other reserve Retained
Premium Reserve (Note) earnings Total
g
R EE Hit G (KzE) REEF BE
US$'000 US$'000 US$'000 US$'000 US$'000
TEn TEn TEn TER TEn

GEE

The merger reserve of the Group represents the difference
between the nominal value of the share capital and share
premium of the subsidiaries acquired pursuant to the group
reorganisation completed on 26 December 2002 and the nominal
value of the share capital of the Company issued in exchange

therefor.

REBNAMRHBEEER_ZZ_F
TZAZ T ARH TR EEEHEMKE
BB 1 B B9 AR AN T B R AR 17 S (B B AR
RIBETRAMBIT 2 RAEENZE -
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e BHRRME

17 RESERVES - GROUP AND COMPANY (continued) 17 ffg— 4+ EERF LT (&)

(b) Company (b) Z&AF
Share Exchange Retained
premium reserve Earnings Total
B 13 E B X E REBA B
US$'000 Us$’000 Us$'000 Uss$’000
TEr TEn FEn TERn
At 1 January 2013 RZE—=F—A—H 194,098 88 18,783 212,969
Comprehensive loss 2HEER
Loss for the year REEEE - - (8,177) (8,177)
Other comprehensive  Hftt 2 HEE
loss
Currency translation BE N Z%E
difference - (14) - (14)

Total comprehensive ~ ZEWA / (EE) A%
income/(loss) - (14) (8,177) (8,191)

Total transaction with BHEEBAZARZHE

owners
Dividends paid relating —Z—-FR-_T—=4F
t0 2012 and 2013 HEIERECENRE
interim period - - (3,741) (3,741)

At 31 December 2013 RZE—=F

+=-A=+—H 194,098 74 6,865 201,037

At 1 January 2014 RZZ—mFE—H—H 194,098 74 6,865 201,037
Comprehensive loss 2EHESR
Loss for the year REEFHE - - (5,901) (5,901)
Other comprehensive  Hfh 2 HEE

loss
Currency translation MEH =

difference - (113) - (113)

Total comprehensive ZEEKA (BER)AE
income/(loss) - (113) (5,901) (6,014)

At 31 December 2014 RZT—HF
+=—RA=+—8

194,098 (39) 964 195,023
Pursuant to Section 34 of the Cayman Companies Law BERSHERARNE(ZZEE=F
(2003 Revision) and the Articles of Association of the 1EaTHR ) 341G AN A Bl 4B A = 1240
Company, the share premium of the Company is available Al RARK R REN DK TR
for distribution to shareholders subject to a solvency RoEARRIEBBEGREDARAE
test on the Company and the provision of the Articles of RERRFEBERMRIAEE -

Association of the Company.
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ARE T BRRME

18 TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES - GROUP AND 18 EFNHAIERRAMBEART-FE
COMPANY BRELF
Group Company
AEH b N
2014 2013 2014 2013
ZE-mEFE —T-=F ZE-@mFE —T—=F
US$'000 Us$'000 UsS$’000 Us$'000
F £t FE F %5 FEx
Trade payables BB SRR 14,546 14,590 - -
Accruals EEtEA 5,065 5,786 95 113
Payable of construction FEAT R K AN IR
costs 10,321 4,608 - -
Other payables H {th fE 1~ FRIE 2,945 4,581 1,146 1,073
32,877 29,565 1,241 1,186
At 31 December 2014, the ageing of trade payables based on RZZE—NEF+ZA=+—0 ERES
invoice date is as follows: RRIREEARZERRONOT
2014 2013
—E-ImF —T—=F
Us$‘000 Us$'000
FEx FE
0 — 30 days 0£30K 13,738 13,354
31 - 90 days 31E90K 685 1,191
91 — 180 days 912180k 59 -
181 — 365 days 181E 365K 27 17
Over 365 days 365K 37 28
14,546 14,590
The carrying amounts of the Group’s and the Company’s AEBRARRNBZEMNE SRR R EMIE
trade and other payables are denominated in the following NRIEZREER NI EEE:
currencies:
Group Company
AEE AT
2014 2013 2014 2013
“E-NE —T-=F ZB-—WmF —T-—=F
Us$‘000 Us$'000 US$'000 Us$'000
FERT FET FERT FEx
Vietnam Dong MEE 18,246 13,978 = -
Us Dollar EIT 10,278 9,546 348 315
New Taiwan Dollar e 893 871 893 871
Renminbi AR 3,460 5,170 - -
32,877 29,565 1,241 1,186
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e BHRRME

19 BANK BORROWINGS - GROUP AND COMPANY 19 SHTHEE-FEERELFT

Group Company
rEH KAF
2014 2013 2014 2013
—E-NOFE —FT—= —E-NFE —T—=F
uUs$’000 Us$'000 us$'000 Us$'000
FEx FET FEx FET
Non-current E =Rt
Bank borrowings RITEE
- secured R
(Notes 34 and 36) (Mf7E34%36) 27,696 1,223 - -
— unsecured — EE K 4R 5,000 851 = -
32,696 2,074 - _
Current BPHA
Bank borrowings RITEE
- secured R
(Notes 34 and 36) (Mf3E34%36) 28,381 34,843 - -
— unsecured — K 1R 10,476 8,242 9,276 2,502
38,857 43,085 9,276 2,502
Total bank borrowings RITEERLRE 71,553 45,159 9,276 2,502
At 31 December 2014, the Group's and the Company’s bank RZIEBE—NE+-_A=+—0 XAEER

borrowings were repayable as follows:

/N ﬂZfETﬂ%é B PAT BAfE (& 22 -

Group Company
rEE b NS

2014 2013 2014 2013
—E2-mE —T-=-F ZB-NmFE ~—T—=F
Us$‘000 Us$'000 Us$‘000 Us$'000
FEx FEx FEx FEx
Within 1 year —ER 38,857 43,085 9,276 2,502
Between 1 and 2 years —FEWF 8,633 1,223 - -
Between 2 and 5 years MEZRF 20,587 - - -
Over 5 years AFUE 3,476 851 - -
71,553 45,159 9,276 2,502
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mE Rz E
19 BANK BORROWINGS - GROUP AND COMPANY 19 SHRITHEE-FEERFLF (E)
(continued)
Group Company
AEH AT
2014 2013 2014 2013
—F-mE —T-=F —FT-mNF =T =%
us$’000 Us$'000 us$’000 Us$'000
TE FET TE5 FET
Wholly repayable AR
within 5 years 68,077 44,308 9,276 2,502
Wholly repayable ZERN
after 5 years 3,476 851 - -
71,553 45,159 9,276 2,502

The exposure of the Group's borrowings to interest rate
changes and the contractual repricing dates at the end of the

reporting period are as follows:

RIBERR AEEEE
PRANEFTERRAMAT:

T T 4 0 )

Group Company
AEH ¥ YN

2014 2013 2014 2013
“E-NE ZT—=F ZZEB-WmFE —ZT—=F
Us$‘000 Us$'000 Us$‘000 Us$'000
FERx FET FEx FE
Within 6 months 68 AR 58,453 38,715 9,276 2,502
Between 7 and 12 months  7& 1218 A 4,000 5,222 - -
Between 1 and 5 years 15854 9,100 1,222 = -
71,553 45,159 9,276 2,502
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1 24 Vedan International (Holdings) Limited

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e BHRRME

(continued)

The carrying amounts and fair values of the non-current
borrowings are as follows:

19 RITEE-FRERFLF (HF)

ERBABEZEEERATENAT

Group Company
AEH AT

2014 2013 2014 2013
“E-NE —T—=F ZEB-WNFE —T—=F
Us$'000 US$'000 Us$'000 Us$'000
TER FET TER FET
Carrying amount BREE 32,696 2,074 - -
Fair value NS 32,701 2,072 - -

The fair values of current borrowings equal their carrying
amounts, as the impact of discounting is not significant. The
fair values are based on cash flows discounted using a rate
based on the borrowing rate of 2.2% (2013: 3.5%) and are
within level 2 of the fair value hierarchy.

The effective interest rates per annum of the Group’s and the
Company's borrowings at the end of the reporting period were
as follows:

HRTFRFETK BHEE 2 AT EE
HEREEER - X FEDREEN X2 2E
(ZF—=%F 1 35E)SHMLERRZ
BenSh TER A FEERZFE2H -

RBERR AEBRARAEEZER
FREMT

Group Company
rEH KAF
2014 2013 2014 2013
—F-QNE —T-F _—_F-NFE —T-=-F
US Dollar ET 1.9% 2.1% 2.3% 3.1%
New Taiwan Dollar =i 2.2% 2.3% 2.2% 2.3%

The carrying amounts of the Group’s and the Company's
borrowings are denominated in the following currencies:

RS RS A 2 IR (B A TR
s

Group Company
AEE KAT
2014 2013 2014 2013
—E-mE —T-=F ZB-NF —T-=4
US$'000 US$'000 US$'000 US$'000
FEx FET SEESoE FE=T
US Dollar E7T 69,977 44,157 7,700 1,500
New Taiwan dollar ek 1,576 1,002 1,576 1,002
71,553 45,159 9,276 2,502
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ARE T BRRME

19 BANK BORROWINGS - GROUP AND COMPANY 19 BTER-FRERFLF ()
(continued)
The Group has the following undrawn borrowing facilities: REBBEUATKRIZEABERE -
2014 2013
—E-NmF —T—=F
Us$‘000 Us$'000
FEx FE
Floating rate: N
- Expiring within one year —R—FRE 69,543 60,552
— Expiring beyond one year —R—FEER - -
Fixed rate: EL
— Expiring within one year —R—ERIH 29,849 32,256
— Expiring beyond one year — R —F1& 5 5 1,900 7,333
101,292 100,141
20 DEFERRED INCOME TAX - GROUP 20 BEFBR-F%XE
Deferred income tax is calculated in full on temporary RIEFTERIIIRE B EEARER EERM
differences under the liability method using the principal tax ERRERNFEENERMBE YR EET
rates prevailing in the countries in which the Group operates. Ho
The analysis of deferred income tax assets and liabilities is as REMSHEERABZONBET
follows:
2014 2013
—ZE-mF —E-=F
UsS$’000 Us$'000
FER FET
Deferred income tax assets: BREFSHEE:
— Deferred income tax assets to be —BR12{E A Bk E 2
recovered after more than 12 months BEFRBHEE = -
Deferred income tax liabilities: BEFREHARE:
— Deferred income tax liabilities to be — R 121E A & U e 2
recovered after more than 12 months BEMGHAE 4,772 5,357
Deferred income tax liabilities, net BEFSHAEFE 4,772 5,357
The gross movement on the deferred income tax account is as RISV RES AW T
follows:
2014 2013
—E-NmF —T—=F
Us$‘000 Us$'000
FEx FE
At 1 January w—H—8H 5,357 6,122
Income statement credit (Note 25) AP AU E R (FFFE25) (585) (765)
At 31 December Rt+ZR=+—8”H 4,772 5,357
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o)

20

B RS R R M AT

DEFERRED INCOME TAX - GROUP (continued)

The movement in deferred income tax assets and liabilities
during the year, without taking into consideration the offsetting
of balances within the same tax jurisdiction, is as follows:

20

BIEFRFM-—AKE (K)
KEZRLEMEHEERBE (Rt RE
SHAR R BT R R ) A5 BR AT ) M B 10
T~

Deferred income tax liabilities EEFESHARE Accelerated tax depreciation
IEBEINE
2014 2013
—EF-mF —F=F
Us$‘000 Us$'000
FEx FEx
At 1 January wn—HA—H 6,144 7,142
Credited to income statement AR & (569) (998)
At 31 December R+=—A=+—8H 5,575 6,144
Deferred income tax assets BEERBSHEE Other temporary differences
Hitt =5
2014 2013
—F-mF —T=%F
us$’000 Us$'000
FEx FEx
At 1 January w—A—H (787) (1,020)
(Credited)/charged to income statement (st A) /% alkER (16) 233
At 31 December w+—A=+—8~ (803) (787)

According to the PRC Enterprise Income Tax Law, the profits
of PRC subsidiaries of the Group derived since 1 January 2008
will be subject to withholding tax at a rate of 10% upon
the distribution of such profits to foreign investors. Deferred
income tax liabilities of US$828,000 (2013: US$858,000)
have not been recognised in respect of temporary differences
attributable to accumulated profits of the Group's PRC
subsidiaries as the Group controls the dividend policy of
these PRC subsidiaries and it is probable that these temporary
differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

Deferred income tax assets are recognised in respect of
tax losses carried forward to the extent that realisation of
the related tax benefit through the future taxable profits
is probable. The Group has unrecognised tax losses of
Us$11,782,000 (2013: US$10,949,000) to carry forward
against future taxable income. These tax losses will expire in
one to five years.
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mEMBEHRRHE
21 REVENUE 21 &
The Group manufactures and sells fermentation-based AEBBERFEETHRMANE &
food additives, biochemical products and cassava starch- tEMEARERHIEER BEE
based industrial products including modified starch, glucose M BERE KB BHIT BHEEK
syrup, MSG, soda, acid and beverages. Revenues recognised B BE-_FT-—NFER-_FT—=F+=
for the years ended 31 December 2014 and 2013 were A=+ —BLEE®#Rz2EmD 55
US$325,627,000 and US$342,453,000 respectively. 325,627,000 7T 5 342,453,000 7t ©
22 OTHER GAINS - NET 22 Hftlra— B
2014 2013
—B-NmF —E-=F
Us$‘000 Us$'000
FTERT FET
Net exchange loss fE X 518 F 5 (184) (77)
Loss on disposals of property, LEWE BWE R
plant and equipment BB ZIEE (314) (269)
Sales of scrap materials BRI 813 887
Others EHAh 555 615
870 1,156
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23 EXPENSES BY NATURE 23 BREHSBZAX
Expenses included in cost of sales, selling and distribution HEKA  HE RO HF X RITHF T
expenses and administrative expenses are analysed as follows: BIEZEIZSWNIT:
2014 2013
—E-NF —T-=%F
Us$'000 Us$'000
FE7 FEx
Changes in inventories and consumables FERCRBEERES
used 237,639 255,791
Amortisation of intangible assets A E#H 1,334 1,339
Amortisation of land use rights 3 {50 P R 4 66 55
Auditor’s remuneration % ELRD Bl & 340 340
Depreciation on property, plant and M REMEBITE
equipment 20,175 22,145
Operating leases expenses BRAMEE g
in respect of leasehold land MOz 325 161
Employee benefit expenses B ERFIFX 29,135 29,986
(Reversal)/provision for impairment of [ E Z R FORE
trade receivables (BEm) i (21) 127
Other expenses E B sz 38,636 32,336
Total cost of sales, selling and distribution %%m_m& ) fﬁ%@&’;}%ﬁ;ﬂ?{
expenses and administrative expenses RATHH S 327,629 342,280
24 FINANCE (COSTS)/INCOME - NET 24 BB (ZH) WA -—BE
2014 2013
—ZT-IF —ET—=F
Us$‘000 Us$'000
FERT FEx
Finance income B B A 643 981
Interest expense on bank borrowings RITIEER ERHRX (1,359) (742)
Less: amounts capitalised B EREEENMETIE
on qualifying assets 449 -
Finance costs B 2 (910) (742)
Finance (costs)/income — net BB (ZH) WA —F58 (267) 239
25 INCOME TAX EXPENSE 25 FrfsREAX

i AR IR BE F A fh EHE R BE MR A &
EEEMERNR 2 ERREE-

Taxation on profits has been calculated on the estimated
assessable profit for the year at the rates of taxation prevailing
in the countries in which the Group operates.
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25 INCOME TAX EXPENSE (continued) 25 FRiSRBAT (4&)

The amount of income tax charged to the consolidated income REEERERANG ZAEHREE
statement represents:

2014 2013
—B-mF —F—=fF
Us$'000 Us$'000
FEx FEx
Enterprise income tax (“EIT") AT 2,054 3,036
Over-provision of income tax @?Eifﬁﬁ ST ARG
in previous years (37) (477)
Total current tax BVER%G 18 48 28 2,017 2,559
Deferred income tax ,uUﬁ«m (585) (765)
1,432 1,794
The income tax on the Group's (loss)/profit before income tax NEBAREBHA (BB BRI AT
differs from the theoretical amount that would arise using ?%ﬁiﬁi%%?%ﬁﬁzﬁiliﬁﬁﬂ?ﬁﬂﬁtﬁ
the applicable tax rate for Vietnam Vedan, which is a major UR ATV AR R M Et B R R R A K
subsidiary of the Group, as follows: Bl
2014 2013
—E-IfF —T—=%F
UsS$'000 Us$'000
F £t FEx
(Loss)/profit before tax BrELAT (B51B),a F (1,496) 2,522
Tax calculated at domestic tax rate of 15% AR R15%51 8 2
(2013: 15%) MB(ZT—=%:
15% ) (224) 378
Tax effects of different tax rates TR EZ MG E (88) (97)
Expenses not deductible for tax purposes AR 2 1,479 1,191
Income not subject to tax BAERTHA (51) (36)
Utilisation of previously unrecognised tax AR ARERB IS EE
losses (23) -
Over-provision in prior years R FEBERE (37) (477)
Tax losses arising for which no deferred FTEABITEERET
income tax asset was recognised FrEHEE 2 HBER 376 835
Tax charge BIE X 1,432 1,794
EIT is provided on the basis of the statutory profit for financial PTG TR I 5 R R A A B m FlET &
reporting purposes, adjusted for income and expenses items B BLFT5 B A B ZE SR B 3 S AT F0 80 A I 2
which are not assessable or deductible for income tax purposes. HEEELARE-
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25 INCOME TAX EXPENSE (continued) 25

(i) Vietnam
The applicable EIT rate for the Group’s operations in
Vietnam is 15%,
by the Vietnam Government and is stipulated in the
subsidiary’s investment license.

which is an incentive tax rate offered

(ii) The PRC
The applicable EIT rate for the Group’s operation in the
PRC is 25%.

(iii) Singapore/Hong Kong

No Singapore/Hong Kong profits tax has been provided as
the Group had no estimated assessable profit arising in or
derived from Singapore and Hong Kong during the year.

Taiwan
The applicable EIT rate for the Group’s operations in
Taiwan is 17%.

(iv)

26 LOSS ATTRIBUTABLE TO OWNERS OF THE 26
COMPANY

The loss attributable to owners of the Company is dealt with
in the financial statements of the Company to the extent of
US$5,901,000 (2013: loss of US$8,177,000).

27 DIVIDENDS 27

There was no dividend paid in 2014 (2013: US$3,741,000
(0.246 US cents per ordinary share)). The Board has resolved
not to recommend for shareholders’ approval at its forthcoming
annual general meeting the payment of a final dividend for the
year ended 31 December 2014 (2013: same).

FRrie MRS ()
() M
BB AR EFFAIE R

SEEBEENEBNERCEMS
BER15% BN X BB ET
BYTHEEVE-

(i) E
REBERENEBNEREEMR
FRMER25% ©

g &R

F 7 AN £ (] 7 7S 4F B2 3 7 R 0
KB RENS S At ERTUR T -
B U 3 £ 4F R N3 BB RIS B
Hitm o

(iii)

(iv) &2
AEBEERENEBNBERTER
BHERBI1T% -

FOFRHFAEMEGR

RARNBHERREENARDGEE AR
b &8 45,901,000t (ZFE—=F : [
188,177,000 7T) °

BR

T-MFEFHERERE(ZT—=
E 3,741,000% T (R & @AR0.2463%
i) EREERFETEBRERET
—ME+—_A=+—BLFENRHERE
(ZZE—Z=Z%F :HR) AEREEEERE
AFRE LFEH-

2014 2013
—F-—HmEF ZE—=F
Us$'000 Us$'000
F = FET
2014 interim dividend, nil (2013 interim: —MEREBRS
0.101 US cents) per ordinary share m(ZE—=Fh:
0.101%E1) B I & i Ak - 1,536
The aggregate amounts of the dividends paid and proposed RZE—NFRZZFT-=FHEMN R
during 2014 and 2013 have been disclosed in the consolidated g SR RBREE QG 2 BHERTE
income statement in accordance with the disclosure RéreWam R HRE -

requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.
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28 (LOSS)/EARNINGS PER SHARE 28 ERR(EE) 27
(a) Basic (@) EX

(b)

Basic (loss)/earnings per share is calculated by dividing
the (loss)/profit attributable to owners of the Company by
the weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue
during the year.

BRER (BR) BMNERADRE
BARES (B8R SMBRAFEARR
BITEBRH BT HHE -

2014 2013
—F-mF —T=%F
UsS$’000 Us$'000
F £ FEx
(Loss)/profit attributable to owners NATIEB ARG
of the Company (E518) &= F (2,434) 1,488
Weighted average number of ordinary B %17 8 I NE F 52
shares in issue (thousands) (BAFED) 1,522,742 1,522,742
Basic (loss)/earnings per share BRER (FE) BT
(US cents per share) (BRRZEMW) (0.16) 0.10
Diluted (b) #8

Diluted (loss)/earnings per share is same as basic (loss)/
earnings per share as there are no dilutive instruments for
the years ended 31 December 2014 and 2013.

HE-ZT-—NFER=-FT—=F+=
A=+—BLFE BRALEEET
B SREE (BB BRNETR
EAX(EB) /BFER-
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29

30

EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES (INCLUDING 29 EREMNAXZ (BREESEFM)
DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION)
2014 2013
—F-HmE —ZF—=
us$’000 us$'000
FEx FET
Wages, basic salaries and allowances T& JE# MER 24,096 24,469
Pension costs — defined contribution plans B AR & Ak A — F 58 1 2T 2 2,556 2,435
Other employee benefits HihfEEEH 2,483 3,082
29,135 29,986
RETIREMENT BENEFIT OBLIGATIONS 30 BFEFIEE

As stipulated by the labour laws in Vietnam, the Group
operates defined benefit pension plans for its employees in
Vietnam employed on or before 31 December 2008. The
provision is determined based on the employees’ years of
services as at 31 December 2008 and their average monthly
salary for the six-month period prior to the last service day.

REBESHERRE AEEAR_-F
ZENF+ A=+ —BHIURRERNB
MEERHTEENERAREFE -ZE
BARBR _ZENF+_A=+—Rz2
AR 7% 4 2l e % 42 AR 7% A B AT /<ML A B A
TG A FE -

2014 2013

—B-mE —F—=
Us$'000 Us$'000
¥ %5 FEx
As at 1 January »—A—H 1,169 1,262
Current service cost BIVHA AR 75 59 52 208 107
Payments (BN (163) (200)
As at 31 December Wn+=ZA=+—~” 1,214 1,169

The principal actuarial assumptions used were as follows: FEANEEBE/RENT:

2014 2013
—E-MF —E—=F
Discount rate R X 9% 9%
Salary growth rate ITERRX 3.0% - 7.9% 3.0% -7.9%

B HIR B IR 75 F IR

Expected years of service remaining

15 - 20 years®E 15 - 21 yearsF

Pursuant to the Law on Social Insurance in Vietnam effective
from 1 January 2009, the Group is required to contribute to
a state-sponsored employees’ social insurance scheme for its
employees in Vietnam. The group has no further payment
obligations once the contributions have been paid. The
contributions are recognised as employee benefit expense when
they are due.
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31 EMOLUMENTS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR 31
MANAGEMENT

(a)

The aggregate amounts of emoluments paid and payable

EEREREEROTFH

(a) AFEAKEECNRENAARE

to the directors of the Company by the Group during the EWFHHRELT
year are as follows:

2014 2013
—F-mF —T=F
Us$'000 Us$'000
F £t FEx
Fees we 9 6
Basic salaries and allowances [ 3 K BL 1,222 1,222
Discretionary bonuses B 15 2 BB AT 15 -
1,246 1,228

None of the directors of the Company waived any
emoluments during the year (2013: Nil).

The remuneration of every director of the Company for
the year ended 31 December 2014 is set out below:

REZIWE|ARNREFREE(TH
M(—F—=F:%|)-

BE_Z-—MF+-_A=+—HI
FE -ARASEFNHME T N

T
Other
Discretionary benefits
Fees Salary bonuses (Note) Total
2t
Name of Director EEfR e & BBERNRA (zE) &it
Us$'000 Us$'000 US$'000 US$'000 Us$'000
TEL TEL TET TEn TEn
Executive Director HES
Mr. Yang, Tou-Hsiung REERE 1 280 - 13 294
Mr. Yang, Cheng BEEE - 200 - 13 213
Mr. Yang, Kun-Hsiang BHRERE - 305 15 13 333
Mr. Yang, Chen-Wen BRXEE - 150 - 13 163
Mr. Yang, Kun-Chou BENEE - 150 - 13 163
Non-executive Director FHTES
Mr. Chou, Szu-Cheng ABREE - - - 12 12
Mr. Huang, Ching-Jung BRREE 1 - - 12 13
Independent non-executive BUFHTES
Director
Mr. Chao, Pei-Hong BELEE 2 - - 12 14
Mr. Chen, Joen-Ray RARKEE 2 - - 12 14
Mr. Hsieh, Lung-Fa B gt 1 - - 12 13
Mr. Ko, Jim-Chen figs 2 - - 12 14
Total At 9 1,085 15 137 1,246
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31 EMOLUMENTS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR 31 EEREREEBOTHM (&)
MANAGEMENT (continued)
(a) (continued) @) (&)
The remuneration of every director of the Company for HE-_Z—=F+ZZA=+—H1
the year ended 31 December 2013 is set out below: FE ARASESHNHFIWERZ M
T
Other
Discretionary benefits
Fees Salary bonuses (Note) Total
EfbER
Name of Director BESH% e ¥ BBRRRA (Pt3E) &3t
Us$'000 US§'000 US§'000 US$'000 Us$'000
TEn TEn TEn TEn T
Executive Director HTESE
Mr. Yang, Tou-Hsiung BEERE - 280 - 13 293
Mr. Yang, Cheng BEXE - 200 - 13 213
Mr. Yang, Kun-Hsiang BEELE - 305 - 13 318
Mr. Yang, Chen-Wen BRXEE - 150 - 13 163
Mr. Yang, Kun-Chou mENEE - 150 - 13 163
Non-executive Director FUTES
Mr. Chou, Szu-Cheng ABREE - - - 12 12
Mr. Huang, Ching-Jung BERREE - - - 12 12

Independent non-executive BUFHTES

Director

Mr. Chao, Pei-Hong HEREE 2 - - 12 14
Mr. Chen, Joen-Ray RERHEE 1 - - 12 13
Mr. Hsieh, Lung-Fa Bt 1 - - 12 13
Mr. Ko, Jim-Chen g E 2 - - 12 14
Total At 6 1,085 - 137 1,228
Note: B 5E

Other benefits include travelling allowance. HAb @A 38 = iRER -

(b) The five individuals whose emoluments were the highest (b) AEEAFERNRAEZZETMAL
in the Group for the year included five (2013: five) BRELEA(ZE—Z=ZF :0%)HNT
executive directors; their emoluments are reflected in the B BENMESER EXZHMHH
analysis presented above. [z g

(c) During the year, no emoluments have been paid to the (0 AFEILERAAQFNES (BEARE
directors of the Company (includes the five highest paid ERzsasAL)ZAEe - F
individuals of the Group) as an inducement to join or as AR I AR & B ) 52 ) o B B A
compensation for loss of office. =
There are no outstanding share options as at 31 RZZE—OFRZT—=F+=A
December 2014 and 2013, =T B EERERRITE
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31 EMOLUMENTS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR 31 ESERERTHEENTM (E)
MANAGEMENT (continued)
(d) Senior management remuneration by band d) EHREEEMESEHE
The emoluments fell within the following bands: MENTFRUATEHE :

Number of individuals

AB
2014 2013
—E-NF —ZF—=
Emolument bands (in US$) Me#E (=mT)
US$80,001 — US$105,000 80,0013 7T — 105,000% 7T 5 10
US$105,001 — US$130,000 105,0013 7T - 130,000 7T 5 3
32 CASH GENERATED FROM OPERATIONS 32 RBEEZHS
2014 2013
—E-OF —E-=F
Us$‘000 Us$'000
TExn FET
(Loss)/profit before income tax BrETS R AT (BB, 5 F (1,496) 2,522
Adjustments for: BMATIEE AR
— Finance costs/(income) — net (Note 24) —BBE L (BA)
— %5 (M5E24) 267 (239)
— Share of post tax loss of an associate — (L — A R RIBR A
(Note 10) & &8 (M5E10) 97 32
— Depreciation of property, plant and —WE WELRETE
equipment (Note 7) (PF5E7) 20,175 22,145
— (Reversal)/provision for impairment of —EWE ZERFURE
trade receivables (Note 13) (Bm) B
(BIzE13) (21) 127
- Amortisation of intangible assets —mEEEH (M)
(Note 8) 1,334 1,339
— Amortisation of land use rights (Note 6)  — == 3 {5 i # 8 £
(Ht3E6) 66 55
— Loss on disposal of property, plant and —HEWE RE KRB
equipment (see below) ZEE (RT3 314 269
— Gain on disposal of non-current assets —HERBIELEIERD
held for sale (see below) BEz2WE (RTX) - (986)
20,736 25,264
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32 CASH GENERATED FROM OPERATIONS 32 RBEEZHE (H])
(continued)
2014 2013
—E-NF —T-=F
Us$‘000 Us$'000
FERT FEx
Change in working capital (excluding BEEASE
the effects of exchange differences on (RFH4RE 8RB
consolidation) EEXZEREBETE)
- Inventories -7 10,427 (24,106)
— Trade receivables, prepayments and —-BWE SRR
other receivables SCENE IE&
H A & W R IR 2,636 5,880
— Trade payables, accruals and —ENE SRR
other payables FEstER R
Ho Al A IR 3,363 (9,408)
— Net changes in balances with —HEAEEARIREY
related companies FE (1,070) (50)
Cash generated from/(used in) operations ~ EBEL(FTA) 28 & 36,092 (2,420)

In the consolidated statement of cash flows, proceeds from sale
of property, plant and equipment and non-current assets held

EZ*AEE%‘}ML%% N HEEME BE R
BERFIEL SR EE S HKIEAN

for sales comprise: e
2014 2013
—ZT-F —T—=F
UsS$'000 Us$'000
FEr F=E=T
Net book amount (Note 7) BREFE (MIsE7) 326 279
Loss on disposal of property, plant and HEME MERREZ
equipment (Note 22) B8 (7E22) (314) (269)
Proceeds from sale of property, plant and HEME BELEEZ
equipment Fri8 58 12 10
Net book amount BREFEE = 1,900
Gain on disposal of non-current assets HERIFLEFRDEE Y
held for sale Wz = 986
Proceeds from sale of non-current HEFIELEERBDEEZ
assets held for sale FriS 3 E = 2,886
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33 COMMITMENTS 33 XiE
(a) Capital commitments (a) EREE
The Group's capital expenditure contracted for at the end AEEBRHRERRDITNEREE
of the reporting period but not yet incurred is as follows: ZEARZHIT
2014 2013
—E-NF —ZT—=
us$’000 Us$'000
F £t FEx
Contracted but not provided for BETAE R E
Property, plant and equipment Y- BB R 3,408 39,345
Investment in an associate (Note) R—EBE AR ZRE
(Hf=E) 2,632 2,632
6,040 41,977
Note: i
Details of investment are disclosed in Note 10. REFHBRMI 105K E -
(b) Operating lease commitments (b) REHNEE
The Group had future aggregate minimum lease AREBRBE A RELLEOM T
payments in respect of land and buildings under non- MEEFERRREINORERE
cancellable operating leases as follows: FIBLATEMOT
2014 2013
—E-F —E—=F
Us$‘000 Us$'000
FERT FEx
No later than one year —F KA 528 491
Later than one year and —FREDFA
no later than five years 1,597 1,953
Later than five years FF & 2,557 2,632
4,682 5,076
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34 CONTINGENT LIABILITIES 34

At 31 December 2014, the Company has given guarantees for
bank facilities of subsidiaries amounting to US$92,500,000
(2013: US$92,300,000), of which US$51,235,000 (2013:
US$60,244,000) has not been utilised.

35 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 35

The ultimate controlling party of the Group is the Yang Family,
whose members are Messrs. Yang, Tou-Hsiung, Yang, Cheng,
Yang, Yung-Huang, Yang, Kun-Hsiang, Yang, Kun-Chou, Yang,
Yung-Jen, Yang, Chen-Wen, Yang, Wen-Hu, Yang, Tung, Ms.
Yang, Wen-Yin, Ms. Yang, Shu-Hui and Ms. Yang, Shu-Mei.

(@) The table below summarises the related parties and
nature of their relationship with the Company as at 31
December 2014:

RRAER
R-ZE—NMF+_A=+—H AAa
A BB A F92,500,000k L (& —=
£ :92,300,000% 7T) 2 RITIE B IR 15
1 H 51,235,000 T (- T — =4
60,244,000 70) W AB) A ©

IIF

AFRAEALRS
AEBREBERTARERRE EKEE
BHBRMELE BELRE BKRKEXRE 15
RS BN L HKERE  BIR
XA B E BEEL  BXB K
T BRELLRGREL L

(@) TEBER_ZT—WF+=A
Zt+—BZEBEEBEALREEAR
AIMBERMEE

Related party Relationship with the Company

BFHEAL =N [z 0] 2R

Vedan Enterprise CORP (“Taiwan Vedan") A substantial shareholder of the Company
RACEROERAT ([BEKT]) RAFMEERE

Dacin International Holdings Ltd. An associate of the Company

EMEEERERA ZANYNG N

Capron Group Limited A company commonly controlled by the Yang Family
Capron Group Limited —EGERREERZES ZAF
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35 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued) 35 ARAEALRES ()
(b) Significant related party transactions, which were carried (b) EAXREEHEEBPETHERE
out in the normal course of the Group’s business are as FEALTIT:

follows:

2014 2013
—E-OF —T—=%F
Note Us$'000 US$'000
Bt E FEx FET
Sale of goods to Taiwan Vedan mAERMEEE®D (i) 2,678 2,865
Technological support fee paid to A1 & /& bk fF 2 1 Bl
Taiwan Vedan XERE (i) 2,267 2,268
Agency commission income A & 2 IR B &Y
received from Taiwan Vedan KRB WA (ii) 16 25
Sale of 0.1% of shareholding of @ Capron Group
Vedan (Vietnam) Enterprise Limited £} £ Vedan
Corporation Limited to Capron (Vietnam) Enterprise
Group Limited Corporation Limited
20.1% % (iif) 155 -

Notes: Bt eE -

(i) In the opinion of the directors of the Company, sales to (i) RAREERR MBEMEALTE
the related parties were conducted in the normal course of HZHERTEAREBPHET
business.

(i) In the opinion of the directors of the Company, the (i) ARBEERR ZEXFHEEE
transactions were carried out in the normal course of EBHRET W ERBEBRZD
business and the fees are charged in accordance with the &R E -

terms of underlying agreements.

(i) Details of the related party transaction are disclosed in iy BEEALXRSZFHFBERWEI7
Note 37. o
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35 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued) 3 FREALTEZS (i)
() Key management compensation (0 FEEEAEMS

The compensation paid or payable to key management, HEERBENIENEEERA

including all executive directors and senior management, B(BEMENTESLaRER

for employee services is shown below. ) Z FHEE ST .

2014 2013
—E-mF —E-=F
UsS$'000 Us$'000
TE5 FET
Salaries and other short-term R EAm R RS R
employee benefits 2,252 2,417
(d) Year-end balances with the related parties (d) EHEEBHEATZERER
As at 31 December 2014, the Group had the following RZZE—MOF+ZA=+—0 &%
significant balances with the related parties: BEHEEEATZEELHIT
2014 2013
—E-ImF —E-=F
Note Us$‘000 Us$'000
B 5 TE5x FET
Current: BNER :
Amount due from/(to) el (FER) & &
Taiwan Vedan UK FH 2 FRIR (i) 1,146 (313)
Short term loan to an associate BT —MEEE AR
EHIE R (i) - 96
Amount due from an associate JE — B & AR 2
Q| (iii) 123 -

Notes: B 5 -

(i) All balances with Taiwan Vedan are unsecured, interest- (i) BERNMOE &GS AEEE .
free and have no fixed terms of payment. SR RERTERE-

(i) The short-term loan to an associate is unsecured, bears iy HTF—EBREQRZEHERAE
interest at 3.5% per annum, denominated in US$ and is A IR ERRISEEHB  AETT
repayable on 16 September 2014. FHE WEARZZE—HFLA+TA

HEE-
(i) As at 31 December 2014, the amount due from an iy MRZZTE—NF+-—A=+—H &

associate is US$123,000, which is unsecured, interest free,
denominated in US$ and is repayable on demand (2013:
nil).
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36

37

BANKING FACILITIES

Save as disclosed in Notes 19 and 34 to the financial
statements, the Group’s bank borrowings of US$57,277,000 as
at 31 December 2014 (2013: US$36,066,000) were secured by
legal charges over certain of the Group's property, plant and
equipment (Note 7) with net book amount of approximately
US$7,557,000 (2013: US$15,058,000) and the Group's
restricted cash (Note 14) of approximately US$4,249,000 (2013:
US$4,264,000).

TRANSACTIONS WITH NON-CONTROLLING
INTERESTS

On 25 July 2014, the Group disposed of 0.1% of interest
in Vedan (Vietnam) Enterprise Corporation Limited to
Capron Group Limited, a related party, at a consideration of
US$155,000, which is not settled as of reporting date. The
carrying amount of the non-controlling interests in Vedan
(Vietnam) Enterprise Corporation Limited on the date of
disposal was US$216,000. The Group recognised an increase
in non-controlling interests of US$216,000 and a decrease in
equity attributable to owners of the company of US$61,000.
The effect of changes in the ownership interest of Vedan
(Vietnam) Enterprise Corporation Limited on the equity
attributable to owners of the company during the year is
summarised as follows:

36

37

HMITEE

B BT 5 SR R M sE19 34T I B & 4h 0 K
EER-_ZFE—NFF+-_A=+—8ZR
1716 857,277,000 L (Z & — = :
36,066,0003 7T ) &1 BRI ¥ {E 497,557,000
L (-F—=%:15,058,000%7T)~
BETASEWE BER&E (MFE7)
ZEERRRAEEZZREIE S (K
14)#4,249,000F 0 (ZE— = F:
4,264,000 7T ) {EHE o

BFRERESETZIRS

R-Z—ME+A-+H B AEEMU
155,000 ;R & 1 A& B & A - Capron
Group Limited! &Vedan (Vietnam)
Enterprise Corporation LimitedZ0.1%
Bm-RNARESHE ZeBHREE-
P H & B E - Vedan (Vietnam) Enterprise
Corporation LimitedZ JE2 B #2 2 AR I (B
7%216,0003% 7T 7N £5 [E i 3R 3 12 AR a1
#1216,000% 7T R AR B HEB A FEAL 1
R 461,000 7T 4 B Vedan (Vietnam)
Enterprise Corporation Limited# A& A#
HEHFEARNABRE ARGER V2
mE

As at 31 December

R+=A=+-—H
2014 2013
—EF-nmE —F-=F
Us$‘000 Us$'000
FER FE
Carrying amount of non-controlling B & e i 25 2
interests disposed of BRHEE (216) -
Consideration receivable from ) FE 15 AR A 2 R 2
non-controlling interests YR AB 155 -
Loss on disposal within equity FFAERZ HEEE (61) -
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